
SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT 
300 Lakeside Drive, P. 0. Box 12688, Oakland, CA 94604-2688 

BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
July 25, 2019 

9:00 a.m. 

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors will be held at 9:00 a.m. on Thursday, July 25, 2019, in 
the BART Board Room, 2040 Webster Street, Oakland, California. 

Members of the public may address the Board of Directors regarding any matter on this agenda. 
Please complete a "Request to Address the Board" form (available at the entrance to the Board Room) 
and hand it to the Secretary before the item is considered by the Board. If you wish to discuss a matter 
that is not on the agenda during a regular meeting, you may do so under Public Comment. 

Any action requiring more than a majority vote for passage will be so noted. 

Items placed under "consent calendar" are considered routine and will be received, enacted, approved, 
or adopted by one motion unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is received from a 
Director or from a member of the audience. 

Please refrain from wearing scented products (perfume, cologne, after-shave, etc.) to these meetings, as 
there may be people in attendance susceptible to environmental illnesses. 

BART provides service/accommodations upon request to persons with disabilities and individuals who 
are limited English proficient who wish to address BART Board matters. A request must be made 
within one and five days in advance of Board meetings, depending on the service requested. Please 
contact the Office of the District Secretary at 510-464-6083 for information. 

Rules governing the participation of the public at meetings of the Board of Directors and Standing 
Committees are available for review on the District's website (http://www.bart.gov/about/bod), in the 
BART Board Room, and upon request, in person or via mail. 

Meeting notices and agendas are available for review on the District's website 
(http://www.bart.gov/about/bod/meetings.aspx); at bart.legistar.com; and via email 
(https://public.govdelivery.com/accounts/CATRA~BART/subscriber/new?topic id=CATRANBART 
1904) or via regular mail upon request submitted to the District Secretary. Complete agenda packets 
(in PDF format) are available for review on the District's website and bart.legistar.com no later than 48 
hours in advance of the meeting. 

Please submit your requests to the District Secretary via email to BoardofDirectors@bart.gov; in 
person or U.S. mail at 300 Lakeside Drive, 23rd Floor, Oakland, CA 94612; fax 510-464-601 1; or 
telephone 510-464-6083. 

Patricia K. Williams 
District Secretary 



Regular Meeting of the 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

The purpose of the Board Meeting is to consider and take such action as the Board may desire 
in connection with: 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

A. Roll Call. 
B. Pledge of Allegiance. 

2. CLOSED SESSION (Room 303, Board Conference Room) 

A. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE EMPLOYMENT: 
Title: General Manager 
Government Code Section: 54957(b )(1) 

B. CONFERENCE WITH NEGOTIATORS: 
Designated Representatives: Directors Dufty, Saltzman, Allen, and Foley 
Title: General Manager 
Government Code Section: 54957.6 

3. OPEN SESSION 

A. Announcement of Appointment of General Manager, if any. 

B. Compensation and Benefits for General Manager. Board requested to 
authorize. 

4. INTRODUCTION OF SPECIAL GUESTS 

A. Michael McGill, Chairperson of the Bond Oversight Committee, 
presentation of Annual Report . * 

B. Rick Goldman, Chairperson of the BART Bicycle Advisory Task Force, 
presentation of Annual Report.* 

C. Summer Interns from the Planning, Design and Construction, and 
Maintenance and Engineering Departments. 

5. CONSENT CALENDAR 

A. Approval of Minutes of the Meetings of June 13, 2019 (Regular); June 27, 
2019 (Regular); July 11, 2019 (Regular); and July 17, 2019 (Special).* 
Board requested to authorize. 

B. BART Police Citizen Review Board (BPCRB) Allocation of Funds for 
Membership Fees to Nationa1 Association for Civilian Oversight of Law 
Enforcement (NACOLE). * Board requested to authorize . 

* Attachment available 2 of5 



C. Resolution Authorizing California State of Good Repair Program Funds 
for Fiscal Year 2019 -2020.* Board requested to adopt. 

D. District Engineering Recruitment Sourcing Services.* Board requested to 
authorize. 

E. Employee Relocation Assistance for the Deputy Managing Director 
Capitol Corridor.* Board request to authorize. 

F. Agreement with U.S. Bank Voyager Fleet Systems, Inc., for Participation 
in the State of California Department of General Services Purchase Card 
(CAL-Card) Program for the Voyager Fuel Card Program.* Board 
requested to authorize. 

G. Award of Contract No. 15TC-231 , Aerial Structure Fall Protection, M
Line. * Board requested to authorize. 

H. Invitation for Bid No. 9054, Fujitec Step Assemblies.* Board requested 
to authorize. 

I. Invitation for Bid No. 9055, Escalator Step Assemblies.* Board 
requested to authorize. 

J. Invitation for Bid No. 9061, Uninterruptible Power Supply.* Board 
requested to authorize. 

K. Reject the Single Bid for Agreement No. 6M3425, Systemwide Track 
Joint Elimination Services.* Board requested to reject. 

L. Richmond Greenway Pedestrian/Bike Path Revocable License Agreement 
with the City of Richmond.* Board requested to authorize. 

6. PUBLIC COMMENT - 15 Minutes 
(An opportunity for members of the public to address the Board of Directors on matters under 
their jurisdiction and not on the agenda. An additional period for Public Comment is provided at 
the end of the Meeting.) 

7. ADMINISTRATION ITEMS 
Director Simon, Chairperson 

A. Award of Agreement No. 6M4674, with APEX Investigation, for 
District's Workers' Compensation Investigative Services.* 
Board requested to authorize. 

8. ENGINEERING AND OPERATIONS ITEMS 
Director Foley, Chairperson 

A. Agreements for Quality of Life Programs.* Board requested to authorize. 

B. Single Source Procurement with Motorola Solutions, Inc., for an 
Independent Public Safety Tunnel Radio System.* 
Board requested to authorize. (TWO-THIRDS VOTE REQUIRED) 

* Attachment available 3 of5 



C. Award of Contract No. 07EA-120, 19th Street/Oakland Station 
Modernization Project.* Board requested to authorize. 

D. Agreement No. 6M3426 with Loram Maintenance of Way, Inc. , 
for Production Rail Profiling Services.* Board requested to authorize. 

E. Change Orders to Contract No. 09DJ-150A, TBT Cathodic Protection 
Reference Cell Replacement, with DMZ Builders.* 
a. Complete the Contract Work during Weekends and 

Extension of Time (C.O. No. 9.1 and 16). 
b. Developing a Preliminary Welding Plan (C.0. No. 10). 
c. Removal of the Two Newly Installed Panels and Pin Brazing 

Conduits (C.O. No. 11 and 12). 
d. Conduit and Cables Quantity Overrun (C.O. No. 13 and 15). 
e. Provide Roadway Worker Certified (RWP) Labor (C.O. No. 14). 
Board requested to authorize. 

F. Change Order to Contract No. 47CJ-120, Procurement of Ticket Vending 
Machine Transport Installation Kits with Software Modifications, 
with Cubic Transportation Systems, Inc., to Dispense Clipper Cards 
(C.O. No. l).* Board requested to authorize. 

9. PLANNING, PUBLIC AFFAIRS, ACCESS, AND LEGISLATION ITEMS 
Director Raburn, Chairperson 

A. Award of Agreement No. 57RR-1 10, with Alex Kushner General, Inc., for 
Embarcadero and Civic Center Bike Station Modifications.* 
Board requested to authorize. 

B. Update on Transbay Corridor Core Capacity Project.* For information. 

10. GENERAL MANAGER' S REPORT 

A. Report of Activities, including Updates of Operational, Administrative, 
and Roll Call for Introductions Items. 

11. BOARD MA TIERS 

A. Board Member Reports. 
(Board member reports as required by Government Code Section 53232.3(d) are available 
through the Office of the District Secretary. An opportunity for Board members to report 
on their District activities and observations since last Board Meeting.) 

B. Roll Call for Introductions. 
(An opportunity for Board members to introduce a matter for consideration at a future 
Committee or Board Meeting or to request District staff to prepare items or reports.) 

C. In Memoriam. 
(An opportunity for Board members to introduce individuals to be commemorated.) 

* Attachment available 4 of5 



12. PUBLIC COMMENT 
(An opportunity for members of the public to address the Board of Directors on matters under their 
jurisdiction and not on the agenda.) 

13. CLOSED SESSION (Room 303, Board Conference Room) 

A. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - POTENTIAL LITIGATION 
Hayward Yard 6/19/2016 Piper Aircraft Accident 
Government Code Section: 54956.9(b)(3)(B) 

14. OPEN SESSION 

A. Announcement from Closed Session, if any. 

* Attachment available 5 of5 



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT 
300 Lakeside Drive, P.O. Box 12688, Oakland, CA 94604-2688 

Board of Directors 
Minutes of the 1,842nd Meeting 

June 13, 2019 

DRAFT 

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors was held June 13, 2019, convening at 9:09 a.m. in 
the BART Board Room, 2040 Webster Street, Oakland, California. President Dufty presided; 
Patricia K. Williams, District Secretary. 

Directors present: 

Absent: 

Directors Ames, Allen, Foley, Li, Raburn, Saltzman, Simon and Dufty. 

None. Director McPartland entered the Meeting later. 

President Du.fly called for Introduction of Special Guests. 

General Manager Grace Crunican announced the retirements of David Kutrosky, Managing 
Director, Capitol Corridor; Martin Gran, Chief Relations Labor Officer; and Kerry Hamill, 
Assistant General Manager, External Affairs, and thanked them for their service to BART and 
Capitol Corridor. 

Consent Calendar items brought before the Board were: 

1. Approval of Minutes of the Meeting of May 23, 2019. 

2. BART Police Citizen Review Board Appointments and Re-Appointments 

Director Raburn made the following motions as a unit. Director Saltzman seconded the motions, 
which carried by unanimous electronic vote. Ayes - 8: Directors Allen, Ames, Foley, Li, 
Raburn, Saltzman, Simon, and Dufty. Noes - 0. Absent - 1: Director McPartland. 

1. That the Minutes of the Meeting of May 23, 2019, be approved. 

2. That the Board of Directors ratify the appointment or reappointment of the 
following individuals for a term of2 years, beginning on July 1, 2019, and expiring 
on June 30, 2021: 

Dwaine Pete Longmire, District 2 
Darren White, District 4 
Les Mensinger, District 6 
David Rizk, District 8 

President Dufty called for Public Comment. 

The following individuals addressed the Board: 

Aleta Dupree 
Logan Williams 
Ariella Granett 

-1-



Debra Matthews 
Betsy Thagard 
Vicki Sommer 
Matthew Lewis 
John Lau 
Peter Waller 
Libby Lee-Egen 

President Dufty announced that the order of agenda items would be changed. 

DRAFT 

Director Raburn, Chairperson of the Planning, Public Affairs, Access, and Legislation 
Committee, brought the matter of Update on Implementation Approach for Assembly Bill 2923, 
San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District: Transit-Oriented Development before the Board. 
Ms. Crunican; and Ms. Abigail Thome-Lyman, Program Manager I, Systems Development, 
presented the item. 

The following individuals addressed the Board: 
Rashi Kesarwani 
James Chang 
Victoria Fierce 
Seth Mazou 
Darrell Owens 
Phyllis Orrick 
Paul Brickmore 
Peter Mui 

The item was discussed. 

Director Raburn brought the matter of Request to Extend the Exclusive Negotiating Agreement 
for Transit-Oriented Development, with China Harbour Engineering Company, Ltd., for the 
West Oakland BART Station Project before the Board. Mr. Sean Brooks, Department Manager, 
Property Development, presented the item. The item was discussed. 

The following individuals addressed the Board: 
June Ji · 
Alan Dones 
Regina Davis 
Joe Bolte 

Director Simon moved that the General Manager or her designee be authorized to enter into an 
amendment to the Exclusive Negotiating Agreement (ENA) with China Harbour Engineering 
Company, Ltd., for development at the West Oakland BART Station extending the ENA's term 
through December 31, 2019 and, if necessary, enter into a subsequent amendment to the ENA 
extending its term through June 30, 2020. Director Raburn seconded the motion, which carried 
by unanimous electronic vote. Ayes - 8: Directors Allen, Ames, Foley, Li, Raburn, Saltzman, 
Simon, and Dufty. Noes - 0. Absent - 1: Director McPartland. 

President Dufty brought the matter of Resolutions Commending Grace E. Crunican before the 
Board. The full Board moved adoption of Resolution No. 5399, Resolution Commending Grace 
E. Crunican, and it was unanimously seconded and carried by electronic vote. Ayes - 8: 

-2-



DRAFT 
Directors Allen, Ames, Foley, Li, Raburn, Saltzman, Simon, and Dufty. Noes - 0. Absent - I: 
Director McPartland. Ms. Crunican addressed the Board. 

Director Simon, Chairperson of the Administration Committee, brought the matter of 
Participation in a Regional Means - Based Transit Fare Discount Pilot Program before the 
Board. Ms. Crunican; Ms. Pamela Herhold, Assistant General Manager, Perfonnance and 
Budget; and Mr. Michael Eiseman, Department Manager Financial Services, presented the item. 
The item was discussed. 

The following individuals addressed the Board. 
Bob Feinbaum 
Aleta Dupree 

Director McPartland entered the meeting. 

Arielle Fleicher addressed the Board. 

Discussion continued. 

President Dufty moved adoption of Resolution No. 5400, In the Matter of Adopting Modified 
Fare Rates and Charges: Discount for Adult BART Riders who participate in the Metropolitan 
Transportation Commission' s Regional Means-Based Transit Fare Discount Pilot Program. 
Director Saltzman seconded the motion. The item was discussed. 

Jerry Grace addressed the Board. 

The motion carried by electronic vote by the required two-thirds vote. Ayes - 8: Directors 
Ames, Foley, Li, McPartland, Raburn, Saltzman, Simon, and Dufty. Noes - 1: Director Allen. 

Director Simon brought the matter of Resolution Approving the Fiscal Year 2020 Annual Budget 
before the Board. Ms. Crunican; Ms. Herhold; Ms. Kate Jordan Steiner, Department Manager, 
Budgets; and Ms. Tamar Allen, Assistant General Manager, Operations, presented the item. 

President Dufty moved adoption of Resolution No. 5401, In the Matter of Approving the Annual 
Budget for the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District and Authorizing Expenditures for 
the Fiscal Year July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020. Director Raburn seconded the motion. 

The following individuals addressed the Board: 

Bob Feinbaum 
Tom Rubin 
Joe Bolte 
Aleta Dupree 

Director Allen made a substitute motion to prioritize an additional $2 million for the Fiscal Year 
2020 budget to station power washing so that every station is power washed at a minimum of 
once per quarter, and to re-prioritize $25 million not related to station hardening from the 
existing capital budget for Fiscal Year 2020 budget to the following projects: 

• enclose the Coliseum Station elevator 

-3-



DRAFT 
• raise station railings to six feet 
• install electronic control locks on emergency swing gates 
• enclosing of other station elevators. 

Director McPartland seconded the substitute motion with an amendment to let the staff prioritize 
the elevator enclosures. Director Allen accepted the amendment to the substitute motion. 

Director Saltzman made a second substitute motion, to adopt Resolution No. 5401, with the 
additional commitment to fund a pilot ambassador program with up to $500,000 from the 
anticipated small positive net result of the Fiscal Year 2019 budget. Director Li seconded the 
second substitute motion. 

The item was discussed. 

The second substitute motion failed by electronic vote. Ayes - 4: Directors Li, Saltzman, 
Simon, and Dufty. Noes - 5: Directors Allen, Ames, Foley, McPartland, and Raburn. 

The first substitute motion failed by electronic vote. Ayes -4: Directors Allen, Ames, Foley, 
and McPartland. Noes - 5: Directors Li, Raburn, Saltzman, Simon, and Dufty. 

The original motion carried by electronic vote. Ayes - 8: Directors Allen, Foley, Li, 
McPartland, Raburn, Saltzman, Simon, and Dufty. Noes - 1: Director Ames. 

Director Simon brought the matter of Fares for the Silicon Valley Berryessa Extension before the 
Board. Mr. Eiseman presented the item. The item was discussed. Director Raburn moved that 
the Board adopt Resolution No. 5402, In the Matter of Adopting Fare Rates and Charges: Silicon 
Valley Berryessa Extension. President Dufty seconded the motion, which carried by unanimous 
electronic vote by the required two-thirds vote. Ayes - 9: Directors Allen, Ames, Foley, Li, 
McPartland, Raburn, Saltzman, Simon, and Dufty. Noes - 0. 

Director Simon brought the matter of Extension of the Productivity Adjusted Inflation -Based 
Fare Increase Program between 2022 and 2028 before the Board. Ms. Herbold and Mr. Eiseman 
presented the item. The item was discussed. Director Raburn moved that the Board adopt a 
resolution, In the Matter of Adopting New Fare Rates and Charges: Series 3, 2022-2028, 
Productivity - Adjusted Inflation Based Fare Increase Program. President Dufty seconded the 
motion, which failed to carry by electronic vote by the required two-thirds vote. Ayes - 5: 
Directors Li, McPartland, Raburn, Simon, and Dufty. Noes -4: Directors Allen, Ames, Foley, 
and Saltzman. 

Director Simon brought the matter of Increase to the Per Trip Magnetic Stripe Ticket Surcharge 
before the Board. Ms. Crunican; Ms. Herhold; and Mr. Eiseman presented the item. The item 
was discussed. 

Aleta Dupree addressed the Board. 

Director Simon ~oved that the Board adopt a resolution, In the Matter of Adopting Modified 
Fare Rates and Charges: Increase the Per-Trip Surcharge to Fares Paid with Magnetic - Stripe 
Tickets. Director McPartland seconded the motion, which carried by electronic vote. Ayes - 6: 

-4-



DRAFT 
Directors Allen, Ames, Foley, McPartland, Raburn, and Simon. Noes -2: Directors Li and 
Saltzman. Abstain - 1: Director Dufty. 

Director Simon asked for a vote to reconsider. President Dufty moved the item be reconsidered. 
Director Saltzman seconded the motion to reconsider, which carried by unanimous acclamation. 
Ayes - 9: Directors Allen, Ames, Foley, Li, McPartland, Raburn, Saltzman, Simon, and Dufty. 
Noes - 0. 

The motion to adopt Resolution In the Matter of Adopting Modified Fare Rates and Charges: 
Increase the Per-Trip Surcharge to Fares Paid with Magnetic - Stripe Tickets was re-voted on 
electronically and failed to carry by the required two-thirds vote. Ayes - 5: Directors Allen, 
Ames, Foley, McPartland, and Raburn. Noes - 3: Directors Li, Saltzman and Simon. 
Abstain - 1 : Director Dufty. 

Director Simon brought the matters of Issuance and Sale of General Obligation Bonds (Election 
of2004), 2019 SERIES F (Green Bonds) and 2019 Refunding Series G and Issuance and Sale of 
General Obligation Bonds (Election of 2016), 2019 SERIES B ( Green Bonds) before the Board. 

Director Saltzman made the following motions as a unit. Director Li seconded the motions, 
which carried by unanimous electronic vote. Ayes - 9: Directors Allen, Ames, Foley, Li, 
McPartland, Raburn, Saltzman, Simon, and Dufty. Noes - 0. 

1. That the Board adopt Resolution No. 5403, In the Matter Authorizing and 
Approving the Issuance and Sale of not to exceed $240 Million aggregate 
principal amount of San Francisco Ray Area Rapid Transit District General 
Obligation Bonds (Election of2004), 2019 Series F; Authorizing the execution 
and delivery of a first supplemental trust agreement pursuant to which such bonds 
are to be issued, a bond purchase agreement pursuant to which such bonds are to 
be sold by negotiated sale; approving an official statement relating to such bonds; 
authorizing execution and delivery of the official statement and certain documents 
in connection with the issuance and sale of such bonds, including a continuing 
disclosure agreement; delegating to the Controller/Treasurer of the District power 
to determine issuance of refunding bonds and final terms of such bonds and 
complete said documents and authorizing certain other matters relating thereto. 

2. That the Board adopt Resolution No. 5404, In the Matter Authorizing and 
Approving the Issuance and Sale of not to exceed $360 Million aggregate 
principal amount of San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit General Obligation 
Bonds (Election of 2016), 2019 Series B; Authorizing the execution and delivery 
of a first supplemental trust agreement pursuant to which such bonds are to be 
issued, A bond purchase agreement pursuant to which such bonds are to be sold 
by negotiated sale; approving execution and delivery of the official statement and 
certain documents in connection with the issuance and sale and such bonds, 
including a continuing disclosure agreement; delegating to the 
Controller/Treasurer of the District power to determine final terms of such bonds 
and complete said documents and authorizing certain other matters relating 
thereto. 

Director Raburn brought the matter of BART Headquarters Workplace Strategy and Option 
Analysis before the Board. Mr. Carl Holmes, Assistant General Manager, Development and 

-5-



DRAFT 
Construction; Mr. Brooks; and Mr. Tom Maloney of Jones, Lang, Lasalle, presented the item. 
The item was discussed. 

Jerry Grace addressed the Board. 

President Dufty announced that the Board would enter into closed session under Items 11-A 
(Conference with Labor Negotiators), 11-B and 11-C (Public Employee Employment), and 11-D 
(Conference with Real Property Negotiators) of the Regular Meeting agenda, and that the Board 
would reconvene in open session upon conclusion of the closed session. 

The Board Meeting recessed at 1 :52 p.m. 

The Board reconvened in closed session at 2:04 p.m. 

Directors present: 

Absent: 

Directors Allen, Ames, Foley, Li, McPartland, Raburn, Saltzman, Simon 
and Dufty. 

None. 

The Board Meeting recessed at 4:01 p.m. 

The Board reconvened in open session at 4:05 p.m. 

Directors present: 

Absent: 

Directors Allen, Ames, Foley, Li, McPartland, Raburn, Simon, and Dufty. 

None. Director Saltzman entered the meeting later. 

President Dufty announced that there were no announcements to be made from the closed 
session. 

Director Raburn asked for a vote to reconsider the matter of Extension of the Productivity 
Adjusted Inflation -Based Fare Increase Program between 2022 and 2028. President Dufty 
seconded the motion to reconsider. The motion carried by unanimous roll caJI vote. Ayes - 8: 
Directors Al1en, Ames, Foley, Li, McPartland, Raburn, Simon, and Dufty. Noes:- 0. Absent - I: 
Director Saltzman. 

Director Saltzman entered the meeting. 

Director Foley requested an amendment to the original motion to drop the fourth-year increase in 
the series. D irector Foley moved that that the Board adopt Resolution No. 5405, In the Matter of 
Adopting New Fare Rates and Charges: Series 3, 2022-2026, Productivity - Adjusted Inflation 
Based Fare Increase Program. President Dufty seconded the motion. 

Aleta Dupree and Jerry Grace addressed the Board. 

-6-



DRAFT 
The motion carried electronically by the required two-thirds vote. Ayes - 6: Directors Foley, Li, 
McPartland, Raburn, Simon, and Dufty. Noes - 3: Directors Allen, Ames, and Saltzman. 

Director Saltzman made the following motions as a unit. Director Li seconded the motions, 
which carried by unanimous electronic vote. Ayes - 9: Directors Allen, Ames, Foley, Li, 
McPartland, Raburn, Saltzman, Simon, and Dufty. Noes - 0. 

1. That the Board adopt Resolution No. 5406, In the Matter of Ratifying the 2018-
2022 Collective Bargaining Agreement between the District and the BART Police 
Managers' Association (BPMA). 

2. That the Board adopt Resolution No. 5407, In the Matter of Fixing the Employer 
Contribution at an equal amount for employees and annuitants under the Public 
Employees ' Medical and Hospital Care Act with respect to a recognized 
employee organization 003 BART Police Managers Association (BPMA). 

3. That the Board adopt Resolution No. 5408, In the Matter of Fixing the Employer 
Contribution at an equal amount for employees and annuitants under the Public 
Employees ' Medical and Hospital Care Act with respect to a recognized 
employee organization 003 BART Police Managers Association (BPMA). 

4. That the Board adopt Resolution No. 5409, In the Matter of Fixing the Employer 
Vesting Contribution under Section 22902 of the Public Employees' Medical and 
Hospital Care Act with respect to a recognized employee organization 003 BART 
Police Managers Association (BPMA). 

5. That the Board adopt Resolution No. 5410, In the Matter of Fixing the Employer 
Vesting Contribution under Section 22902 of the Public Employees' Medical and 
Hospital Care Act with respect to a recognized employee organization 003 BART 
Police Managers Association (BPMA). 

President Dufty exited the meeting. 

Director Saltzman made the following motions as a unit. Director Li seconded the motions, 
which carried by unanimous electronic vote. Ayes - 8: Directors Allen, Ames, Foley, Li, 
McPartland, Raburn, Saltzman, and Simon. Noes - 0. Absent -1: President Dufty. 

1. That the General Manager be authorized to award the following agreements for On Call 
Professional Services in an amount not to exceed $1 ,000,000, pursuant to notification to 
be issued by the General Manager, and subject to compliance with the District's protest 
procedures: 

Procurement/Materials Management. 
a. Agreement No. 6M4643 to Accenture LLP. 
b. Agreement No. 6M4644 to Slalom, LLC. 
c. Agreement No. 6M4645 to Sjoberg Evashenk Consulting, Inc. 
d. Agreement No. 6M4646 to AEKO Consulting. 

Capital Budget 
a. Agreement No. 6M4647 to Sperry Capital Inc. 

-7-



DRAFT 
b. Agreement No. 6M4648 to InnoFin Solutions, LLC. 
c. Agreement No. 6M4649 to Sjoberg Evashenk Consulting, Inc. 
d. Agreement No. 6M4650 to Slalom, LLC 

Performance & Audit 
a. Agreement No. 6M4655 to Accenture LLP. 
b. Agreement No. 6M4656 to Cambridge Systematics, Inc. 
c. Agreement No. 6M4657 to Moss Adams LLP. 
d. Agreement No. 6M4658 to Sjoberg Evashenk Consulting, Inc. 

Finance 
a. Agreement No. 6M4659 to Accenture LLP. 
b. Agreement No. 6M4660 to Moss Adams, LLC. 
c. Agreement No. 6M4661 to Sjoberg Evashenk Consulting, Inc. 
d. Agreement No. 6M4662 to Slalom, LLC. 

Director Simon brought the matter of Amendment No. 2 to Concession Permit M342-12 with 
Imperial Parking Corporation for Administration of Parking Permit Programs before the Board. 
Robert Franklin, Department Manager Customer Access, presented the item. The item was 
discussed. 

Director Saltzman moved that the General Manager or her/his designee be authorized to execute 
a second amendment to Concession Permit M342-12 with Imperial Parking Corporation to 
extend the term of the permit for six-months, with three options for subsequent three-month 
extensions, through September 30, 2020 and establish new rates for the provision of services 
during the extension term. Director Simon seconded the motion, which carried by unanimous 
electronic vote. Ayes - 8: Directors Allen, Ames, Foley, Li, McPartland, Raburn, Saltzman, and 
Simon. Noes - 0. Absent -1: President Dufty. 

President Dufty re-entered the meeting. 

Director Foley, Chairperson of the Engineering and Operations Committee, brought the matter of 
Award of Contract No. l STD-260, Production Rail Grinder Upgrade and Repair, before the 
Board. Ms. Tamar Allen: Mr. Laurence Farrell, Group Manager, Maintenance and Engineering; 
and Mr. Gregory Shivy, Principal Track Engineer, presented the item. Director Raburn moved 
that the General Manager be authorized to award Contract No. lSTD-260 to Loram Maintenance 
of Way, Inc., for Rail Grinder Upgrade and Repair, for an amount not to exceed $8,698,600 
pursuant to notification to be issued by the General Manager. President Dufty seconded the 
motion, which carried by unanimous electronic vote. Ayes - 9: Directors Allen, Ames, Foley, 
Li, McPartland, Raburn, Saltzman, Simon, and Dufty. Noes-0 

Director Foley brought the matter of Quarterly Performance Report, Third Quarter Fiscal Year 
2019 - Service Performance Review before the Board. Ms. Tamar Allen and Interim Police 
Chief Ed Alvarez presented the item. 

Jerry Grace addressed the Board. 

The Report was discussed. 

-8-



DRAFT 
Director Raburn, Chairperson of the Planning, Public Affairs, Access, and Legislation 
Committee, brought the matter of Award of Agreement No. 6M8159, with HNTB Corporation, 
for Strategic Advising and Program Management Services for the New Transbay Rail Crossing 
Project before the Board. Ms. Crunican; Mr. Holmes; Mr. Robert Padgette. Managing Director, 
Capitol Corridor; and Ms. Ellen Smith, Group Manager, Planning, presented the item. The item 
was discussed. 

Director Allen moved that the General Manager be authorized to award Agreement No. 6M8159 
to HNTB Corporation to provide Strategic Advising and Program Management Services for the 
New Transbay Rail Crossing Project, for a period of five years, in an amount not to exceed 
$50,000,000, pursuant to notification to be issued by the General Manager, subject to the 
District's protest procedures and Federal Transit Administration' s requirements related to protest 
procedures; and that the General Manager be further authorized to exercise an Option for an 
additional five-year term. Director McPartland seconded the motion, which carried by 
unanimous electronic vote. Ayes - 9: Directors Allen, Ames, Foley, Li, McPartland, Raburn, 
Saltzman, Simon, and Dufty. Noes - 0. 

Director Raburn brought the matter of Update on Irvington BART Station before the Board. 
Mr. Holmes; Mr. Paul Medved, Group Manager, Capital Projects; and Ms. Susan Poljwka, 
Senior Planner, presented the item. The item was discussed. 

Hans Larsen and Jim Pierson addressed the Board. 

President Dufty called for the General Managers Report. 

Ms. Tamar Allen reported on progress made during recent weekend closures and the work that 
was completed. General Manager Crunican reported that Bombardier had announced their plans 
for a facility in the Bay Area, that the BART to Antioch Extension had received an award, and 
that an event had been held to commemorate the Oscar Grant Mural unveiling and Street 
Naming. Ms. Crunican reported on steps she had taken and activities and meetings she had 
participated in, ridership, upcoming events, Police Department staffing numbers, Fleet of the 
Future Car availability, Clipper® card utilization numbers, and outstanding Roll Call for 
Introductions items. 

Ms. Crunican thanked staff at BART for their support over the years. 

President Dufty called for Board Member Reports, Roll Call for Introductions, and In 
Memoriam. 

Director McPartland reported he had attended Memorial Day events, a BART Santa Clara Valley 
Transportation Authority (VTA) Briefing with staff, a retreat at Alameda County Transportation 
Commission, the BARTNTA Joint Meeting, a meeting at Hayward Station related to taxi 
parhlng, a tabletop mass casualty evacuation exercise, Alameda County Emergency Management 
table top exercise, a Concord Yard meeting on new train cars, the BART Police Citizen Review 
Board Meeting, and a Valleylink Tri-Valley-San Joaquin VaJley Regional Rail Authority 
meeting in Tracy. Director McPartland thanked Ms. Crunican for her service. Director 
McPartland reminded meeting attendees that June 14, 2019 would be Flag Day. 

Director Simon thanked Ms. Crunican for her service. 

-9-



DRAFT 
Director Simon exited the meeting. 

Director Allen thanked Ms. Crunican for her service at BART. 

Director Ames thanked BART staff for support at the Hayward Station and thanked Ms. 
Crunican for her work on the Oscar Grant Mural and her leadership. 

Director Raburn reported he had attended the Children ' s Fairyland Gala, Chaired the 
BARTNTAjoint meeting, and had attended the San Leandro Cherry Festival and the Alameda 
Mayors Conference. Director Raburn thanked Ms. Crunican for her community outreach. 

Director Li reported she had attended a BART Board Ambassador Forum, the Oscar Grant Mural 
unveiling, a meeting of the North Beach neighborhood association, and had toured Powell Street, 
Civic Center, 16th/Mission and 241h/Mission Street Stations. She thanked Molly Burke and 
Armando Sandoval for the coordination of an event and thanked Ms. Crunican for her service at 
BART and Women in Leadership for Transit Agencies. 

Director Saltzman thanked Ms. Crunican and noted that her achievements were immense and 
would be felt for generations. 

Director Foley reported he had attended an Association of Bay Area Governments and 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission Bay Area Metro A wards event, the Oscar Grant Mural 
and Oscar Grant III Way unveiling, and a meeting of the Economic Development Task Force for 
Contra Costa County. 

Director Foley requested that stations and train cars have more detail provided during 
emergencies. 

Director Foley thanked Ms. Crunican for her honesty, advice and guidance and wished her a 
happy retirement. 

President Dufty thanked Ms. Crunican for her humor and reflected on her focus on the 
organization's culture, ensuring people feel valued, setting clear expectations, and serving as a 
unifying figure for the organization. 

President Dufty requested that the meeting be adjourned in honor of Sululagi Palega, Director of 
Muni Transit Assistance Program. 

President Dufty called for Public Comment. Jerry Grace and Aleta Dupree addressed the Board. 

The Meeting was adjourned at 5:38 p.m. in honor ofSululagi Palega. 

-10-

Patricia K. Williams 
District Secretary 



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT 
300 Lakeside Drive, P.O. Box 12688, Oakland, CA 94604-2688 

Board of Directors 
Minutes of the 1,843rd Meeting 

June 27, 2019 

DRAFT 

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors was held June 27, 2019, convening at 8:32 a.m. in 
the BART Board Room, 2040 Webster Street, Oakland, California; and 33045 Palmetto Drive, 
Union City, California. President Dufty presided; Patricia K. Williams, District Secretary. 

Directors present in Oakland: Directors Foley, Li, McPartland, Raburn, Saltzman and Dufty. 

Present in Union City: Director Ames. 

Absent: Director Allen. Director Simon entered the meeting later. 

President Dufty announced that the order of agenda items would be changed. 

Director Raburn brought the matter of Resolution Commending the Port of Oakland for 
Partnering with the District to encourage ridership on BART to and from the Oakland 
International Airport before the Board. The item was presented by Aaron Weinstein, Manager of 
Marketing. The item was discussed. The item was continued until later in the meeting. 

Director Simon entered the meeting. 

President Dufty moved to table the Ambassador Program Year-end Allocation of $500,000. 
Director Foley seconded the motion, which carried by unanimous roll-call vote. 
Ayes - 8: Directors Ames, Foley, Li, McPartland, Raburn, Saltzman, Simon and Dufty. Noes -
0. Absent - I: Director Allen. 

President Dufty called for Introduction of Specia! Guests. 

General Manager Grace Crunican introduced the American Public Transit Association's 
International Rail Rodeo BART Team. She announced that BART took first place overall in the 
Maintenance category and second place overall in Train Operations. Maintenance Team 
Members- Steven Dore, Errol Luciano and Gary Crandell and Operator Team Members-Joshua 
Vining and Justin Strong. The team was coached by Paula Fraser, Assistant Chief 
Transportation Officer, and Scott Fitzgerald, Rolling Stock Maintenance Superintendent. 

President Dufty called for Board Member Reports, Roll Call for Introductions, and In 
Memoriam. 

Director Raburn reported he had attended David Kutrosky's retirement dinner, and the Oakland 
All Chambers of commerce meeting. 

Director Ames exited the meeting. 

-1-



DRAFT 
President Dufty brought the matter of Resolution Naming Leadership Program before the Board. 
Shana Dines, Assistant Chief Labor Relations Officer, and Sadie Graham, Project Manager, 
Systems Development, on behalf of the Inaugural Leadership Academy graduates, presented Ms. 
Crunican with a memento and advised that the group had made a donation to Girls Inc. in her 
honor. Director Raburn moved adoption of Resolution No. 5411, In the Matter of Naming the 
BART Leadership Academy. Director Saltzman seconded the motion, which carried by 
unanimous roll call vote. Ayes - 7: Directors Foley, Li, McPartland, Raburn, Saltzman, Simon 
and Dufty. Noes - 0. Absent - 2: Directors Allen and Ames. 

President Dufty returned to the matter of Resolution Commending the Port of Oakland for 
Partnering with the District to Encourage Ridership on BART to and from the Oakland 
International Airport. 

Director Ames re-entered the meeting. 

Kristi McKenney, Assistant Director of Aviation, Port of Oakland addressed the Board. Director 
Raburn moved adoption of Resolution No. 5412, Commending the Port of Oakland for 
partnering with the District to encourage ridership on BART for trips to and from the Oakland 
International Airport. Director Saltzman seconded the motion which carried by unanimous roll 
call vote. Ayes - 8: Directors Ames, Foley, Li, McPartland, Raburn, Saltzman, Simon and 
Dufty. Noes - 0. Absent - 1: Director Allen. 

President Dufty thanked the Board for signing a commendation for Station Agent William 
Cromartie for his dedicated service to BART and its riders. 

President Dufty called for Public Comment. Aleta Dupree and Clarence Fischer addressed the 
Board. 

The Meeting was adjourned at 9:01 a.m. 

-2-

Patricia K. Williams 
District Secretary 



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT 
300 Lakeside Drive, P.O. Box 12688, Oakland, CA 94604-2688 

Board of Directors 
Minutes of the l ,844th Meeting 

July 11, 2019 

DRAFT 

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors was held July 11 , 2019, convening at 8:30 a.m. in 
the BART Board Room, 2040 Webster Street, Oakland, California. President Dufty presided; 
Patricia K. Williams, District Secretary. 

Directors present: 

Absent: 

Directors Ames, Foley, Li, McPartland, Raburn, Simon and Dufty. 

None. Directors Allen and Saltzman entered the Meeting later. 

President Dufty called for Public Comment. Joshua Davis addressed the Board. 

Director Allen entered the meeting. 

Director Saltzman entered the meeting. 

President Dufty announced that the Board would enter into closed session under Item 6-A 
(Conference with Negotiators) of the Regular Meeting agenda, and that the Board would 
reconvene in open session after discussion of Item 6-A, then return to Item 6-B (Public 
Employee Employment) in closed session. 

The Board Meeting recessed at 8:35 a.m. 

The Board reconvened in closed session at 8:36 a.m. 

Directors present: 

Absent: 

Directors Allen, Ames, Foley, Li, McPartland, Raburn, Saltzman, Simon 
and Dufty. 

None. 

The Board Meeting recessed at 8:55 a.m. 

The Board reconvened in open session at 8:56 a.m. 

Directors present: Direc!ors Allen, Ames, Foley, Li, McPartland, Raburn, Saltzman, Simon, 
and Dufty. 

Absent: None. 

-1-



DRAFT 
Vice President Saltzman made the motion that the Board approve the following terms of 
employment for Harriet Richardson: Service for a term of four years commencing on or about 
August 5, 2019, subject to termination as set forth in California Public Utilities Code Section 
28840(b ); base salary of $205,000 per year; and benefits afforded non-represented management 
employees and retirees, except that Ms. Richardson may use her vacation time as accrued in the 
first six months of her employment. The Board President is authorized to execute an 
employment agreement consistent with these terms. Director Allen seconded the motion which 
carried by unanimous electronic vote. 

Ayes - 9: Directors Allen, Ames, Foley, Li, McPartland, Raburn, Saltzman, Simon and Dufty. 
Noes - 0. Absent - 0. 

President Dufty announced that the Board would enter into closed session under Item 11-B 
(Public Employee Employment) of the Regular Meeting agenda, and that the Board would 
reconvene in open session upon conclusion of the closed session. 

The Board Meeting recessed at 8:58 a.m. 

The Board reconvened in closed session at 8:59 a.m. 

Directors present: Directors Allen, Ames, Foley, Li, McPartland, Raburn, Saltzman, Simon 
and Dufty. 

Absent: None. 

Director Simon exited the meeting. 

Director Allen exited the meeting. 

Director Ames exited the meeting. 

The Board Meeting recessed at 3:03 p.m. 

The Board reconvened in open session at 3:05 p.m. 

President Dufty announced that there were no announcements to be made from the closed 
session. 

The Meeting was adjourned at 3:05 p.m. 

-2-

Patricia K. Williams 
District Secretary 



DRAFT 
SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT 

300 Lakeside Drive, P.O. Box 12688, Oakland, CA 94604-2688 

Board of Directors 
Minutes of the 1,845th Meeting 

July 17, 2019 

A special meeting of the Board of Directors was held July 17, 2019, convening at 8:35 a.m. in 
the BART Board Room, 2040 Webster Street, Oakland, California; Clayton Library, 6125 
Clayton Road, Clayton, CA; East Bay Municipal Utilities District, 2551 North Main Street, 
Walnut Creek, CA; and 20047 Meadowlark Drive, Castro Valley, CA President Dufty presided; 
Patricia K. Wimams, District Secretary. 

Directors present in Oakland: Directors Ames, Raburn, Saltzman and Dufty. 

Present in Clayton: Director Allen. 

Present in Walnut Creek: Director Foley. 

Present in Castro Valley: Director McPartland 

Absent: None. Directors Li and Simon entered the meeting later. 

President Dufty called for Public Comment on Item 3 Only. No comments were received. 

President Dufty announced that the Board would enter into closed session under Item 3-A 
(Public Employee Employment) and Item 3-B (Conference with Negotiators) of the Special 
Meeting agenda, and that the Board would reconvene upon conclusion of the Closed Session. 

The Board Meeting recessed at 8:37 a.m. 

The Board reconvened in closed session at 8:39 a.m. 

Directors present: Directors Allen, Ames, Foley, McPartland, Raburn, Saltzman, and Dufty. 

Absent: None. Directors Li and Simon entered the meeting later. 

Director Li entered the meeting. 

Director Simon entered the meeting. 

Director Raburn exited the meeting. 

Director Simon exited the meeting. 

The Board Meeting recessed at 10:22 a.m. 

-1-



DRAFT 

The Board reconvened in open session at 10:22 a.m. 

President Dufty announced that there were no announcements to be made from the closed 
session. 

The Meeting was adjourned at 10:23 a.m. 

-2-

Patricia K. Williams 
District Secretary 



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT 

GENERAL MA.'IAGER APPROVAL: 

'

.h :T' / 2 GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D: , v" 'f c,, 

DATE: 7/ 12/2019 BOARD INITIATED JTEM: Yes 

Originator/Prepared by: Mag Tatum Controller/Tr easurer District Secretary 

;: J. -1 ·\~·\~ 
[ l ( l 

l Status: Routed I Date Crc:ated. 7/12/2019 

BART Police Citizen Review Board (BPCRB) Allocation of Funds for Membership 
Fees to National Association for Civilian Oversight of Law Enforcement (NA COLE) 

PURPOSE: 
To obtain Board authorization for the allocation of funds for BART Police Citizen Review 
Board (BPCRB) membership fees to National Association for Civilian Oversight of Law 
Enforcement (NACOLE). 

BACKGROUND: 

The BPCRB was established by the BART Board of Directors (Board) to increase visibility 
for the public into the delivery of BART police services, to provide community participation 
in the review and establishment of BART Police Department (BPD) policies, procedures, 
practices and initiatives, and to receive citizen complaints and allegations of misconduct by 
BPD employees. 

NACOLE is a non-profit organization that brings together individuals and agencies working 
to establish or improve oversight of police officers in the United States. NA COLE 
Organizational Members are defined as boards who provide civilian oversight of law 
enforcement by legislative or executive mandate. 

There are many NA COLE Organizational Member Benefits: 

• Agencies or boards will receive one transferable regular (voting) membership. 
• Members are eligible to serve on committees. 
• Members receive monthly NACOLE Digest with up to date news and changes in 



BART Police Citizen Review Board (BPCRB) Allocation ofFunds for Membership Fees to National Associa (cont.) 

oversight in the United States and international agencies. 
• Members are eligible to participate in all Regional Training Conferences. 
• Members have access to the member portal with extensive research and training 

materials. 
• Members are eligible to earn the Certified Practitioner of Oversight credential. 

DISCUSSION: 

At it's meeting of February 11, 2019, the BPCRB voted unanimously to approve $400.00 per 
fiscal year in funding for annual membership to the NACOLE organization. 

The annual membership fee will effectively make the BPCRB an Organizational Member. 
Organizational Member Boards are granted the ability to vote on items brought before 
NACOLE. Although the Board of Directors has approved a yearly expenditure for BPCRB 
members to attend the yearly conference, the BPCRB is not officially a member of the 
organization. The NACOLE annual training conference increases the knowledge and skills of 
members who work in oversight. 

FISCAL IMP ACT: 

Funds will be budgeted from the District Secretary Department's operating budget 
(Department 0401141, Account 604060) for the total amount of $400.00 per fiscal year. 

Funding for subsequent years will be included in the proposed annual operating budget, 
subject to Board approval. 

This action is not anticipated to have any Fiscal Impact on unprogrammed District reserves 
in the current Fiscal Year 

ALTERNATIVES: 
Do not allocate funding for the annual membership to the NACOLE organization. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

On the basis of analysis by BART Police Citizen Review Board members, it is 
recommended that the Board adopt the following motion. 

MOTION: 

The Board authorizes the allocation of $400.00 per fiscal year for BART Police Citizen 
Review Board (BPCRB) membership fees to National Association for Civilian Oversight of 
Law Enforcement (NACOLE). 



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT 

GENERAL MANAGER AP PROV AL: 

DATE: 6/ 12/2019 

Originator/Prepared by: Donna Lee 

Dept: Grant DevclopmeJ1t 

................. ~ 
Signature/Date: 1 ( f-/J '7 

I -, vwly ]4 J 
GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D: 

BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No 

Controller/Treasurer District Secretary BARC 

Resolution Authorizing the Acceptance of FY19/20 California State of Good Repair 
Program Funds 

PURPOSE: To obtain Board approval of a Resolution required for the receipt of Senate Bill 
1 (SB-1) funds through the State Transit Assistance (ST A) State of Good Repair (SGR) 
Program. For FY19/20, BART will be allocated $6,129,507 in STA SGR revenue-based 
formula funds. BART staff will use these funds to perform critical elevator and escalator 
renovation work at various District stations and facilities. 

DISCUSSION: 
The STA State of Good Repair Program will provide annual funds to transit operators in 
California for eligible transit maintenance, rehabilitation, and capital projects. This program 
will benefit the public by providing public transportation agencies with a consistent and 
dependable revenue source to invest in the upgrade, repair, and improvement of 
transportation infrastructure; and improving transportation services. As a condition to 
receive ST A State of Good Repair funds, Caltrans requires the Board of Directors approve a 
resolution to formally accept the grant with associated terms and conditions and designate a 
District Officer authorized to execute all required documents for participation in the SGR 
program and any amendments to those documents. 

BART staff proposes using the $6,129,507 in FY19/20 STA State of Good Repair funds to 
pe1fonn critical maintenance work to renovate escalators and elevators at various District 
stations and facilities. No grant match is required. 

FISCAL IMP ACT: Approval of the Resolution of Local Support is a Cal trans requirement 
for the District to receive a FYI 9/20 formula allocation of State of Good Repair funds in the 
amount of $6, 129,507. These funds are already included in the adopted FY20 Budget to 
perform preventative maintenance work. The action will have no fiscal impact to 
unprogrammed District Reserves. No local match is required. 



STA State of Good Repair 

ALTERNATIVES: Do not approve the Resolution of Local Support. If the Resolution is 
not approved, BART will risk the loss of STA State of Good Repair funds in the amount of 
$6,129,507, and could lose the opportunity to perform crucial maintenance work on 
escalators and elevators. 

RECOMMENDATION: Adopt the following motion. 

MOTION: The BART Board of Directors approves the attached "Resolution Authorizing 
the Acceptance ofFY19/20 California State of Good Repair Program Funds," and 
designates the General Manager, or an appointed designee, to execute all required 
documentation for participation in this program. This action will enable the receipt of funds 
in the amount of $6,129,507 to perfonn critical elevator and escalator renovation work at 
various District stations and facilities. 



San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District 

ATTACHMENT I 

RESOLUTION# ---

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR THE 
SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT 

AUTHORIZING THE ACCEPTANCE OF FISCAL YEAR 2019-20 
CALIFORNIA STATE OF GOOD REPAffi PROGRAM FUNDS 

WHEREAS, the SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT (District) is an 
eligible project sponsor and may receive State Transit Assistance (STA) funding from the State 
of Good Repair Account (SGR) now or sometime in the future for transit projects; and 

WHEREAS, the statutes related to state-funded transit projects require a local or regional 
implementing agency to abide by various regulations; and 

WHEREAS, the State Controller's Office has released the Fiscal Year 2020 SGR 
apportionments and the District is estimated to receive $6,129,507 in SGR funds; and 

WHEREAS, the District's elevator and escalator renovation projects are eligible projects per the 
SGR program guidelines; and 

WHEREAS, Senate Bill 1 (2017) named the California Department of Transportation 
(Department) as the administrative agency for the SGR; and 

WHEREAS, the Department has designated the Metropolitan Transportation Commission 
(MTC) as the regional entity responsible for coordinating the administration of all SGR projects 
and distribution of SGR funds to eligible sponsors (local agencies) within the nine-county Bay 
Area. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the SAN 
FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT that the funds referenced above, 
namely the "FY19/20 California State of Good Repair Program Funds," are hereby accepted in 
the amount of $6,129,507, and the District agrees to comply with all conditions and requirements 
set forth in the applicable statutes, regulations and guidelines for all SGR funded transit projects. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the District's General Manager, or 
an appointed designee, is authorized to execute all required documentation of the SGR program 
and any Amendments thereto with the Metropolitan Transportation Commission and California 
Department of Transportation. 

SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT: 

BY: -------------
President 

Rev. 01 01 11 



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT 

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL: l'7 TuL1 Zc\, 
'T7' ' . l""j")~ ~ • ,~ f'c:J -. 4P 

GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D: 

DATE: 7/10/2019 BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No 

Originator/Prepared b y: Gia llole Controller/Treasurer Djstrict Secreta ry 

Dept: Human Resour ces Administration 

[ ] I J 'l - n-Zcp\~ 

Status: Approved Date Created: 7/ 10/2019 

District Engineering Recruitment Sourcing Services 

PURPOSE: 
To obtain Board authorization to allow the General Manager to enter into an agreement with 
one or more agencies for the purpose of recruitment for specialized engineering positions. 

DISCUSSION: 

On March 11 , 1993 , the Board adopted Resolution 4487, requiring Board approval prior to 
any recruiting activity to employ a person who is not a current District employee for an 
annual salary of $50,000 or more. The resolution also states that the Dist1ict should confine 
its recruiting to the State of California. Accordingly, staff has sought approval prior to 
engaging a third-party recruiter for any position. 

Staff brought similar requests to the Board in May 2013 and July 2016. With continued need 
to fill specialized engineering and Project Management positions in a competitive labor 
market, especially with continuing Measure RR funded headcount, the District would like to 
continue to use specialized firms for the recruitment and process ing of difficult to fill 
engineering positions. The District will ensure that the selected fums follow all Office of Civil 
Rights policies as established by the Federal Transit Administration. 

The firm(s) selected wi ll be procured in accordance with the District's policies and 
procedures. The sourcing firm(s) will be required to focus their efforts on individuals within 
California, specifically the San Francisco Bay Area. However, the recruitments will not be 
confined to California. 



Engineering Sourcing Services (cont.) 

The Office of the General Counsel will approve any and all solicitation documents and 
agreements as to fom1. 

FISCAL IMP ACT: 

The costs for the sourcing services are estimated not to exceed $200,000; with a cost range 
of $15,000 to $25,000 for each successful placement. Funding for the recruitment sourcing 
services will come from the FY20 operating budget. Funding, if necessary, for subsequent 
years will be included in the proposed annual operating budget cycles, which is subject to 
Board approval. 

FY20 &FY21 Amount Cost Center Account 
Search Firm $100,000 approx, 0502420 681300 

annually 

This action is not anticipated to have any Fiscal Impact on unprogrammed District reserves 
in the current Fiscal Year. 

ALTERNATIVE: 

Continue to identify candidates for these specialized technical positions using the District' s 
in-house recruitment resources. This approach may delay filling key positions, which in turn 
may delay project completion and Measure RR funding spend-down. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Adopt the following motion: 

MOTION: 
That the General Manager or his designee is authorized, in conformance with established 
District procedures governing the procurement of professional services, to obtain District 
recruitment sourcing services, to identify qualified candidates for engineering positions 
identified by the Human Resources Department. The cost of the sourcing services will not 
exceed an aggregate amount of$200,000. 



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT 

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL: GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D: 

DATE: 7/ 10/2019 BOARD lNITIATED ITEM: No 

Originator/Prepared by: Gia llole Controller/Treasurer District Secretary 

Dept: Human Resources Administration 

[ ] 

Relocation for Deputy Managing Director, Capitol Corridor 

PURPOSE: 
To obtain Board authorization for a relocation agreement to assist the District with filling the 
position of Deputy Managing Director, Capitol Corridor. 

DISCUSSION: 
On March 11, 1993, the Board adopted Resolution No. 4487, requiring Board approval prior 
to offering relocation or moving expenses to new employees. 

The Deputy Managing Director, Capitol Corridor is a high-level managerial position that 
requires specialized skills derived from unique managerial/technical experience and 
education. The incumbent will assist in the direction and management of the activities and 
operations of the Office of Capitol Corridor including, assisting in the management and 
delivery of Capitol Corridor passenger rail services and providing highly responsible and 
complex management and support to the Managing Director, Capitol Corridor. 

The ability to offer relocation assistance in the event that a successful candidate is not from 
the immediate area will enhance the District's competitive posture in this search. 

By adopting this motion, the Board will authorize staff to execute a relocation expense 
reimbursement agreement for the role within the parameters of current District practice as 
provided in Management Procedure 70. This procedure sets maximum reimbursement 
amounts for various categories of relocation expenses and it does not allow for 
reimbursement for loss on sale of residence. 



Relocation for Deputy Managing Director, Capitol Corridor (cont.) 

The Office of the General Counsel will approve the relocation expense reimbursement 
agreement as to form. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Costs for relocation will be funded by the Office of Capitol Corridor and will be 
reimbursable through CCJP A or the State of California. 

FY20 Amount Cost Center 
Relocation Assistance $18,000 approx 1401511 

These actions are not anticipated to have any Fiscal Impact on unprogrammed District 
reserves in the current Fiscal Year. 

ALTERNATIVES: 

Recruiting for the position without relocation assistance could result in the inability to attract 
adequate talent. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Adopt the following motion: 

MOTION: 

That the General Manager or his designee is authorized, to enter into a relocation expense 
reimbursement agreement, if necessary, for the role of Deputy Director, Capitol Corridor, in 
accordance with Management Procedure Number 70, New Employee Relocation Expense 
Reimbursement. 



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT 

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL: 

taAArl. ~ 
GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D: 

DATE: 7/10/2019 BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No 

Controllerffrusurtr District Stcrttary BARC 

[ l [ l 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA, DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES VOYAGER 
FUEL CARD PROGRAM 

PURPOSE: 

To obtain Board authorization for the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District's 
(BART) continued participation in the State of California, Department of General Services 
(DGS) Purchase Card (CAL-Card) Program, for purchase of fuel by District staff for non
revenue vehicles beginning December 31, 2018 with U.S. Bank Voyager Fleet Systems, Inc. 
(Voyager), the monitor and administrator of the Voyager Fuel Card Program. 

DISCUSSION: 

The California Public Contract Code, Section 10298 permits the Director of DGS to 
consolidate the needs of its agencies for goods and services, establish contracts and master 
and cooperative agreements, that leverage the State of California's buying power. The DGS 
made and entered into a competitively procured Agreement with Voyager and has 
subsequently amended the Contract term multiple times. This program allows credit card 
purchases for self-serve unleaded gasoline, diesel fuel, M-85 methanol. emergency oil 
replacement and minor emergency repairs of State and eligible public agency vehicles 
pursuant to the same terms and conditions. Districts. including BART, may elect to enter into 
agreements with suppliers/vendors awarded these contracts without further competitive 
solicitation; therefore, saving staff time and expense. Also, consolidated billing by U.S. Bank 
Voyager Fleet Systems, Inc . .minimizes District administrative cost by combining billings 
from participating oil companies into a monthly statement and offering real time web-based 
transaction data, and card maintenance. 



STA TE OF CALIFORNIA, DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES VOYAGER FUEL CARD PROGRAM 

BART has participated in this program with great benefits since November 1995 when the 
Board of Directors first approved the District's participation in the fuel card program. The 
Board has continued to approve BART's participation for each subsequent Agreement 
through the last Addendum approved in November 2016. Effective December 31, 2018 the 
DGS issued an Addendwn extending the term of the current Agreement through December 
31, 2020. 

The Voyager fuel credit card (Voyager card) is accepted by all the major oil companies as 
well as most of the smaller independent service stations, ensuring necessary service to 
District vehicles virtually day or night anywhere in the Bay Area. District use of the Voyager 
card is restricted to Oakland Shop pump outage intervals, Measure RR leased vehicles and 
fueling designated BART vehicles servicing outlying areas, such as BART Police 
Department units when it is not logistically or economically feasible to use the Oakland Shop 
fueling facility. These vehicles are used on a 24-hour basis. 

Voyager cards are issued on a selective basis by vehicle and individual to ensure that card 
access is limited to vehicle operators authorized to use these cards. Purchases authorized by 
the District include regular unleaded gasoline/ten percent ethanol blend, clear diesel foel, 
emergency oil replacement and minor emergency repairs and cleaning. As of July 2019, 
approxnnately four hundred forty nine ( 449), or forty-eight ( 48%) percent of non-revenue, 
on road vehicles including forty-seven ( 4 7) Board approved Measure RR eligible vehicles 
assigned to infrastructure replacement projects are incurring monthly charges._ 

Funding for this contract will include the following estimated expenditures and time periods: 
FYI9 (Jan 1, 2019 to June 30, 2019) $ 390,000 
FY20 (July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020) $ 940,000 
FY2I (July 1, 2020 to December 31, 2020) $ 670,000 
Total. ................... . ......................... ... $2,000,000 
OPERAING FISCAL IMP ACT: 

For core BART Maintenance, the Fuel Credit Card Program will be funded by Operating 
Funds in the amount of$950,000.00 from Cost Center 0802871 (Non-Revenue Vehicle 
Maintenance Division of Maintenance and Engineering) Operating Budget, Fund 0030, 
Account Nos. 680-061 and 680-060. 

For EBAR T Maintenance, the Fuel Credit Card Program will be funded by Operating Funds 
in the amount of $50,000.00 from Cost Center 0807200, Operating Budget, Fund 0030, 
Account No. 680-060.Expenditures for the out year portions of the contract will be included 
in future operating budgets as applicable, subject to Board approval. 

For Measure RR eligible vehicles, the Fuel Credit Card Program in the amount of $1 ,000,000 
will be funded by Capital Projects as follows: 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA, DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES VOYAGER FUEL CARD PROGRAM 

CAPITAL FISCAL IMPACT: 

Funding of$1,000,000 for award of Voyager Fuel Card Program will come from the 
following projects. 

Project: 15EJRRI - 34.5 KV AC Cable Replacement $390,909 

As of July 9, 2019, $71,073,601 is available for this project from the following sources: . . -- . 
- ~.£· -~i:. ~t~~~ ~). 

- --':,'- .""i 
rf 

: -~ . 
. , -~ :". - ... - , 

802A 2017 Measure RR GOB BART 71,073,601 
Total 71,073,601 

BART has expended $31,374,601, committed $18,860,648, and reserved $16,000 to-date for 
other action. This action will commit $390,909 leaving an available fund balance of 
$20,431,443 in these fund sources for this project. 

Project: 15CQ002 - Rails, Ties, Fasteners Ph3 Meas. RR $390,909 

As of July 9, 2019, $164,926,076 is available for this project from the following sources: .. y~ ,, .i' •. . 1: . - ~~:· __ .,. 

- ~- _ _. ·- . . --- ;._~-~-. --L 
.,. 

- ----4---- .. ---

8529 FYI 5 Capital Allocation BART 197,246 
802A 2017 Measure RR GOB BART 164,728,830 
Total 164,926,076 

BART has expended $81,548,477, committed $25,050,999, and reserved $541,962 to-date 
for other action. This action will commit $390,909 leaving an available fund balance of 
$57,393,729 in these fund sources for this project. 

Project: 15TC002 - Renewal of Tunnels & Structures $218,182 

As of July 9, 2019, $91,659,575 is available for this project from the following sources: 
J.-:-'· . . ~ ~: -·•;,:\- -. ~~ -=• · -~~--~~:T~ r ! · ~ --- ~ 1,c "'r_ ·1 l, • -:-- • ~ ·~!1 : ~ t :..i.-~ .: ~ J . ._ • ';.J,J,..- ~ 

[~ .. ~ .. , .J._.::_._~1. ~....,J ~-
• • ~· b ~ , • • • 

~ .. "' - -.a..:-1.W".~~ s..• 4 
111 •1' - -.~ - ..... ,,,..:£.& .a '--" • ~~ ~ ... --. 

6814 SFMfAMuni Local 4,094,711 
802A 2017 Measure RR GOB BART 87,564,864 
Total 91,659,575 

BART has expended $14,035,276, committed $6,168,753, and reserved $0 to-date for other 
action. This action will commit $218,182 leaving an available fund balance of $71,237,364 in 
these fund sources for this project. 

The office of Controller/freasurer certifies that funds are currently available to meet this 
obligation. 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA, DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES VOYAGER FUEL CARD PROGRAM 

This action is not anticipated to have any Fiscal Impact on unprogrammed District reserves. 

ALTERNATIVES: 

Seek another supplier through BAR Ts own competitive solicitation process, which will 
increase the District's procurement cost and will not likely lead to increased competition or 
lower fuel cost. The Voyager card is available through the Fuel Credit Card Program at no 
additional cost to the District. Also, vehicles could refuel at the Oakland Shop Facility only, 
however this would not be cost effective for vehicles assigned to outlying locations such as 
the Richmond and Hayward Yards and West Bay facilities. Additionally Measure RR eligible 
vehicles are subject to special tracking requirements facilitated by use of the Voyager Fleet 
Card. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

On the basis of analysis by Staff, it is recommended that the Board adopt the following 
Motion. 

MOTION: 

The General Manager is authorized to enter into an Agreement with U.S. Bank Voyager Fleet 
Systems, Inc. for participation in the State of California DGS CAL-Card Program, reference 
Participating Addendum No. 7-16-99-27, Amendment 1, Commercial Card Solutions 
Contract 00612-Category 2, for the period December 31, 2018 to December 31, 2020. 



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT 

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL: GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D: Tu ~- 2 J'7 'J'u/y ZCIJ ApproveandSendtoBoard 

DATE: 7/8/2019 

Originator/Prepared by: Linda Lee 

~~ngineering 

Signature/Date: 

-::rt I~ I 

BOARD JNJTIATED ITEM: No 

Award of Contract No. lSTC-231 Aerial Structure Fall Protection, M-Line 

PURPOSE: To obtain Board authorization for the General Manager to award Contract No. 
15TC-231, Aerial Structure Fall Protection, M-Line to SDV Services, Inc. of Alameda, CA 
for the Bid Price of $1,382,999. 

DISCUSSION: This Contract is part of the Systemwide Aerial Structure Fall Protection 
Program for the installation of permanent fall protection on BART aerial structures. The fall 
protection barriers are required in order to comply with Cal/OSHA requirements which 
provide that persons within six feet from the edge of a raised platform or structure must be 
protected by a guardrail or be tied-off. The permanent fall protection barriers will allow 
workers to access the aerials structures without being tied off. 

The District sent out 213 Advance Notices to potential Bidders, including 22 to plan rooms, 
on April 1, 2019. The Contract was advertised and posted to the BART Procurement Portal 
on April 1, 2019. A total of27 firms c1ownloaded copies of the Bid Documents. A Pre-Bid 
Meeting was conducted on April 10, 2019, with a total of four potential Bidders in 
attendance. Three Bids were received and publicly opened on Tuesday, May 14, 2019. 

BIDDER LOCATION TOTALBID LOCAL 
SMALL 

BUSINESS 
SDV Services, Alameda, CA $1,382,999.00 Yes 
Inc. 

DMZ Builders Concord, CA $3,555,000.00 Yes 

Golden Bay Stockton, CA $3,529,211.00 No 



To obtain Board authorization for the General Manager to award Contract No. ISTC-231 , Aerial Structure Fall Protection, 
M-Line to SDV Services, Inc. of Alameda, CA for the Bid Price of$1,382,999. 

Fence Plus 
Iron Works 
Inc. 

Engineer's $1,018,000.00 
Estimate 

After review by District staff, the Bid submitted by SDV Services, Inc. has been deemed to 
be responsive to the solicitation. Furthermore, a review of SDV Services, Inc. 's license, 
business experience, and financial capabilities has resulted in a determination that SDV 
Services, Inc. is responsible. Staff has also determined that SDV Services,Inc. 's total Bid 
price of $1,382,999.00, although higher than the Engineer's Estimate, is fair and reasonable. 

Pursuant to the District's Non-Federal Small Business Program, the Office of Civil Rights 
set a 7% Local Small Business Prime Preference for this Contract for Small Businesses 
certified by the California Department of General Services and verified as Local (i.e., located 
in Alameda, Contra Costa or San Francisco counties) by the District. The apparent low 
Bidder, SDV Services, Inc., and the apparent third Bidder, DMZ Builders, are eligible for the 
7% Small Business Prime Preference for this Contract for evaluation purposes. SDV 
Services, Inc., is a certified Disabled Veterans Business Enterprise (DVBE) local small 
Business. The apparent second low bidder, Golden Bay Fence Plus Iron, Works, is not a 
certified Local Small Business and it is not eligible for the 7% Local Small Business Prime 
Preference. After review by the Office of Civil Rights, and application of the 7% Local 
Small Business Prime Preference, SDV Services, Inc. remains the lowest, responsive 
Bidder .. 

Pursuant to the District's Non-Discrimination Program for Subcontracting, the Availability 
Percentages for this Contract are 18.2% for Minority Business Enterprises ("MBEs") and 
9.3% for Women Business Enterprises ("WBEs"). SDV Services, Inc. committed to 0% 
MBE and WBE participation. SDV Services, Inc. did not meet either the MBE or WBE 
Availability Percentages; therefore, SDV Services, Inc. was requested to provide the Office 
of Civil Rights with supporting documentation to determine if it had discriminated on the 
basis of race, national origin, color, gender or ethnicity. Based on the review of the 
information submitted by SDV Services, Inc., the Office of Civil Rights found no evidence 
of discrimination. 

District staff has determined that this work is categorically exempt from the provisions of the 
California Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA") pursuant to Title 14, California Code of 
Regulations, Section 15301 (f), Existing Facilities, because it consists of minor alterations of 
existing facilities for safety protection involving no expansion of use. 

CAPITAL FISCAL IMPACT: 



To obtain Board authorization for the General Manager to award Contract No. 15TC-23 l , Aerial Structure Fall Protection, 
M-Line to SDV Services, Inc. of Alameda, CA for the Bid Price of$1,382,999. 

Funding in the amount of $1,382,999 for award of Contract No. 15TC-23I is included in the 
total Project budget for FMS #OI5TC007 -Aerial Fall Protection. 

The table below lists funding assigned to the referenced project and is included to track 
funding history against spending authority. Funds needed to meet this request will be 
expended from the following sources: 

Fund No. Fund Description Source Amount 
802A Measure RR Funds BART $19,979,441 

TOTAL $19,979,441 

As of 07/02/2019, $19,979,441 is the total budget for this project which includes funding for 
up to four additional construction contracts. BART has expended $190,007, committed 
$231,029 and reserved $0 to date. This action will commit $1,382,999 leaving an available 
fund balance of $18,175,406 in this fund source for this project. 

The Office of the Controllerffreasurer certifies that funds are currently available to meet this 
obligation. 

This action is not anticipated to have any Fiscal Impact on unprogrammed District Reserves. 

ALTERNATIVE: The Board may elect to reject the Bid and re-advertise the work of this 
Contract. There is no assurance that any new Bids would be lower than the current Bids. 
Failure to proceed with the Contract would delay the fall protection installation work, which 
will delay staff's access to the aerial structures for maintenance and other related work. 

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the Board adopt the following motion: 

MOTION: The General Manager is authorized to award Contract No. 15TC-231, Aerial 
Structure Fall Protection, M-Line to SDV Services, Inc. for the Bid price of $1,382,999.00 
pursuant to notification to be issued by the General Manager and subject to compliance with 
the District's Protest Procedures. 



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT 

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL: GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D: 

7ll,) 11,4,f, 

DATE: 4/ 1/2019 BOARD INITIATED ITEJ\I: No 

Originator/Prepared by: Michael Lemon Controller/Treasurer District Secretary 

···a .. ··~ ·,.=~ ~'~ 449' 
[ I 

IFB 9054 Fujitec Escalator Step Assemblies 

PURPOSE: To request Board Authorization to award Invitation for Bid ("IFB") No. 9054, 
to Precision Escalator, Kenilworth, NJ in the amount of $1,611,437.05 (includes all taxes) for 
the purchase ofFujitec escalator step assemblies. 

DISCUSSION: The District currently has 25 Fujitec escalators in operation at the following 
locations: North Concord, Pittsburg Bay Point, Castro Valley, Dublin Pleasanton, Colma, 
South San Francisco, San Bruno, and Milbrae BART Stations. These escalators have been 
in service for an average of 19 years, with an average 100 step count per escalator. Based on 
the average life of the escalators there are critical components nearing the end of useful life. 
The District must ensure an adequate supply of replacement material for the existing 
escalators is readily available. 

The IFB is a five (5) year estimated quantity contract. Pursuant to the terms of the District's 
standard estimated quantity contract, during the term of the Contract the District is required 
to purchase from the supplier a minimum amount of 50% of the contract bid price. Upon 
Board approval of this contract, the General Manager will also have the authority to purchase 
up to 150% of the contract bid price, subject to availability of funding. 

A notice requesting bids was published on November 20, 2018. On the same day this 
solicitation was uploaded on the BART Vendor Portal. 



TFB 9054 Fujitec Escalator Step Assemblies (cont.) 

Bids were opened on January 22, 201 9 and two bids were received. 

Bidder Quantity Unit Price Grand Total 
Including 9 .25% 

Sales Tax 
ECS Corporation 1000 ea $1,465.00 $1,600,512.05 

Precision 1000 ea $1,475.00 $1,611,437.05 
Escalator 

Independent cost estimate by BART staff: $2,190,000.00 

ECS Corporation took exception to the District's Delivery Schedule and, as a result the Bid 
was deemed to be non-responsive. 

The District's Non-Discrimination Program for Subcontracting is not applicable to IFBs. 
Accordingly, the Office of Civil Rights did not set Minority Business Enterprise ("MBE") 
and Women Business Enterprise ("WBE") Availability Percentages for this IFB. 

Pursuant to the District's Non-Federal Small Business Program, the Office of Civil Rights set 
a 5% Small Business Prime Preference for this Contract for Small Businesses certified by 
the California Department of General Services. The lowest responsive Bidder, Precision 
Escalator, is not a certified Small Business and therefore, is not eligible for the 5% Small 
Business Prime Preference. 

IFB Delivery Schedule: 5 year, Estimated Quantity Contract, As Required. 

FISCAL IMP ACT: The subject EDD proposes a five year contract at a total cost of 
1,611,437.05 (including all taxes) from 01012020- 12312025. 

Funds will be budgeted in the Maintenance & Engineering operating budget (Dept 0802850-
M&E Financial Adm.in, Account 680010-Inventory Materials Usage) as follows: 

Proposed Funding 
FY20 $322,287.40 
FY21 $322,287.40 
FY22 $322,287.40 
FY23 $322,287.40 
FY24 $322,287.45 

TOTAL $1,611 ,437.05 

Funding for services in this Fiscal Year are included in the Department's existing operating 



IFB 9054 Fujitec Escalator Step Assemblies (cont.) 

budget. Funding for subsequent years will be included in the proposed annual operating 
budget, which is subject to Board approval. 

This action is not anticipated to have any Fiscal Impact on unprogrammed District reserves 
in the current Fiscal Year. 

ALTERNATIVES: Reject all Bids and re-advertise the Contract. This, however, is not 
likely to result in increased competition or lower prices and could potentially result 
in outages of critical escalators while waiting for parts. 

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the Board adopt the following Motion. 

MOTION: The General Manager is authorized to award Invitation for Bid No. 9054, an 
estimated quantity contract, for the purchase of Fujitec escalator step assemblies, to 
Precision Escalator for the amount of $1,611 ,437.05, including taxes, pursuant to notification 
to be issued by the General Manager, subject to compliance with the District's Protest 
Procedure. 



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT 

GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D: 

DA TE: 4/1 5/20 19 BOARD INITIATED ITEM: Yes 

[ J [ l 

IFB 9055 O&K Escalator Step Assemblies 

PURPOSE: To request Board Authorization to award Invitation for Bid ("IFB") No. 9055, 
to Kone Spares, Moline, Illinois in the amount of $1,449,907.44 (includes all truces) for the 
purchase of O&K Escalator spare inventory. 

DISCUSSION: The District currently operates 17 O&K street escalators in key locations 
between Embarcadero and 24th Street Mission stations. While the O&K escalator step 
assemblies are universal and compatible on all 17 escalators, there are two different step 
chain model variations. We have 10 O&K escalators that use 20 HOV step chain and 7 that 
require 25 HOV step chain. Maintenance history has shown the step chain life expectancy 
on both 20 HDV and 25 HDV to be approximately three (3) years. 

Thirteen ( 13) of these escalators are part of the Phase 1 escalator replacement / renovation 
contract, staff analyzed the potential number of step chain replacements that would be 
required over the estimated contract duration. Staff then determined the number of step 
chain sections required to perform each of the step chain replacements and those quantities 
were used to establish a five ( 5) year estimated quantity contract. 

Pursuant to the terms of the Districts standard estimated quantity contract, during the term of 
the Contract the District is required to purchase from the supplier a minimum amount of 
50% of the contract bid price. Upon approval of this contract, the General Manager will 
also have the authority to purchase up to 150% of the contract bid price, subject to 
availability of funding. 



lFB 9055 O&K Escalator Step Assemblies (cont.) 

A notice requesting bids was published on November 20, 2018. On the same day, this 
solicitation was uploaded onto the BART Vendor Portal. Bids were opened on January 9, 
2019 and one (1) bid was received. 

Bidder Item Unit Unit Price Total Grand Total 
Description Quantity Including 9.25°/o 

Sales Tax 
Kone O&K Step 700 ea. $615.00 $430,500.00 $470,321.25 
Spares Assemblies 
Moline, Ill. 

Step Chain 100 pr. $4,289.00 $428,900.00 $468,573.25 
25 HDV30 

Pitch 
Step Chain 60 pr. $942.44 $56,546.40 $61 ,776.94 
25HDV3 

pitch 
Step Chain 100 pr. $4,112.00 $411,200.00 $449,236.00 
20HDV30 

Pitch 
$1,327,146.40 $1,449,907.44 

Independent cost estimate by BART staff: $1,350,000.00 

The District's Non-Discrimination Program for Subcontracting is not applicable to invitations 
for Bid (IFB). Accordingly, the Office of Civil Rights did not set Minority Business 
Enterprise (MBE) and Women Business Enterprise (WBE) Availability Percentages for this 
IFB. 

Pursuant to the District's Non-Federal Small Business Program, the Office of Civil Rights set 
a 5% Small Business Prime Preference for this Contract for Small Businesses certified by 
the California Department of General Services. The lowest responsive Bidder, Kone Spares, 
is not a certified Small Business and, therefore, is not eligible for the 5% Small Business 
Prime Preference. 

IFB Delivery Schedule: 5 year, Estimated Quantity Contract, As Required. 

FISCAL IMP ACT: The subject EDD proposes a five year contract at a total cost of 
$1,449,907.44 (including all taxes) from 01012020 - 06302025. 



IFB 9055 O&K Escalator Step Assemblies (cont.) 

Funds will be budgeted in the Maintenacne & Engineering operating budget (Dept. 0802850 -
M&E Financial Admin, Account 680010 -Inventory Materials Usage) as follows: 

Proposed Funding 
FY20 $289,981.49 
FY2I $289,981.49 
FY22 $289,981.49 
FY23 $289,981.49 
FY24 $289,981.49 

TOTAL $1 ,449,907.44 

Funding for services in this Fiscal Year are included in the Department's existing operating 
budget. Funding for subsequent years will be included in the proposed annual operating 
budget, which is subject to Board approval. This action is not anticipated to have any Fiscal 
Impact on unprogrammed District reserves in the current Fiscal Year. 

ALTERNATIVES: Reject all Bids and re-advertise the Contract. This, however, is not 
likely to result in increased competition or lower prices and could potentially result in 
excessive extended outages of critical escalators. 

RECOMMENDATION: If is recommended that the Board adopt the following Motion. 

MOTION: The General Manager is authorized to award IFB # 9055, an estimated quantity 
contract, for the purchase of O&K escalator step assemblies and O&K step chain 
assemblies to Kone Spares, Moline, Ill. for the amount of $1 ,449,907.44, including taxes, 
pursuant to notification to be issued by the General Manager. 



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT 

DA TE: S/29/2019 

Originator/Prepared by: Mohamad 

Fararjeb 

GENERAL MANAGER ACflON REQ'O: 
authorized to award JFB No. 9061 for Uninterruptible Power Supply to 
Benning Power Electronics, [nc. 

BOARD 1NlTlA TED ITEM: No 

Controllerffreasurer Dis trict Se(retary 

[ ) 

To Obtain Authorization to Award IFB No. 9061 Unioterruptible Power Supply 

PURPOSE: 

To obtain Board Authorization for the General Manager to Award Invitation for Bid 
(IFB) No. 9061 to Benning Power Electronics, Inc., Richardson, TX for the purchase 
of Unintenuptible Power Supply. 

DISCUSSION: 

The Uninterruptible Power Supply (UPS) units provide essential power to the Train 
Control Room (TCR) and communication equipment in the event of a utility power 
outage. The existing TCR UPS units are at the end of their useful life and require 
replacement. The existing units are no longer supported. 

Award of IFB No. 9061 would allow the District to provide reliable train service in 
the event of a power outage by purchasing 25 replacement UPS units to power BARTs 
train control and communications systems. 

This is a three (3) year estimated quantity contract. During the term of the contract, the 
District is required to purchase a minimum of 50% of the contract bid price. Upon 
Board approval of this contract, the General Manager will also have the authority to 



To Obtain Authorization to Award IFB No. 9061 Uninterruptible Power Supply 

purchase up to 150% of the contract bid price, subject to availability of funding. 

A notice requesting bids was published on April 2, 2019. On the same day, this 
solicitation was uploaded onto the BART Vendor Portal. Correspondence was sent to 
ten (10) prospective Bidders inviting them to view the solicitation on the Vendor 
Portal. Bids were opened on April 30, 2019, and two (2) Bids were received. 

Bidder 
Total Incl. Tax 

Benning Power Electronics, Inc. 
$893,017.15 

Richardson, TX 

Power Innovations lnt'l 
$1,025,297.05 

No. Dighton, MA 

Lot Price 

$817,407.00 

$938,487.00 

Independent cost estimate by BART staff: $941,000.00 

Grand 

Staff determined that the apparent low bidder, Benning Power Electronics, Inc., 
submitted a responsive bid. Staff also determined that the bid price is fair and 
reasonable based on the Staffs independent cost estimate. 

The District's Non-Discrimination Program for Subcontracting is not applicable to 
Invitations to Bid (IFB). Accordingly, the Office of Civil Rights did not set Minority 
Business Enterprise (MBE) and Women Business Enterprise (WBE) Availability Percentages 
for this IFB. 

Pursuant to the District's Non-Federal Small Business Program, the Office of Civil Rights 
set a 7% Local Small Business Prime Preference for the Invitation for Bid for Local Small 
Businesses (LSB) certified by the California Department of General Services and verified as 
Local, i.e located in Alameda, Contra Costa, or San Francisco counties, by the District. The 
lowest responsive Bidder, Benning Power Electronics, Inc., is not a certified Local Small 
Business (LSB), and therefore, is not eligible for the 7% LSB Prime Preference. The next 
lowest bidder, Power Innovations Int'l, also is not a certified Local Small Business so 
Benning remains the lowest responsive bidder. 

CAPITAL F1SCAL IMP ACT: 



To Obtain Authorization to Award IFB No. 906 t Uninterruptible Power Supply 

Funding in the amount of $893,017 for award ofIFB No. 9061 is included in the total 
Project budget for FMS #79NKRR1 - Train Control UPS System. 

The table below lists funding assigned to the referenced project and is included to track 
funding history against spending authority. Funds needed to meet this request will be 
expended from the following sources: 

Fund Source Amount 
Measure RR $ 14,981,630 

TOTAL $ 14,981,630 

As of July 2, 2019, $14,981,630 is the total budget for this project. BART has 
expended $2,418,303, committed $46,080 and reserved $941,000 to date. This action 
will commit $893,017 leaving an available fund balance of $10,683,230 in this fund 
source for this project. 

The Office of the Controller - Treasurer certifies that funds are currently available to 
meet this obligation. 

This action is not anticipated to have any Fiscal Impact on unprogranuned District 
reserves. 

ALTERNATIVES: 

The alternative is to reject the Bids. This would leave the BART system, including 
train operation, vulnerable to power failure which could result in delays, system 
possible shutdown, and a loss of revenue service. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Adopt the following motion. 

MOTION: 

The General Manager is authorized to award IFB No. 9061, an estimated quantities 



To Obtain Authorization to Award CFB No. 9061 Uninterruptible Power Supply 

contract, for Uninterruptible Power Supply to Benning Power Electronics, Inc. for an 
amount of $893,017.15 (including applicable sales tax), pursuant to a notification to be 
issued by the General Manager, subject to compliance with the District's Protest 
Procedure. 



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT 

GENERAL MANAGER ACTJON REQ'D: 

BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No 

Controller/Treasurer District Secretary 

C I 

Rejection of Proposal submitted by Holland, LP for Request For Proposals (RFP) 
No. 6M3425 Systemwide Track Joint Elimination Services 

PURPOSE: 
To obtain Board authorization for the General Manager to reject the Proposal submitted by 
Hollan~ LP of Crete, IL, in the amount of $67,247,000.00, for Request for Proposals (RFP) 
No. 6M3425 Systemwide Track Joint Elimination Services. 

DISCUSSION: 
Systemwide Track Joint Elimination restores Continuous Welded Rail (CWR) throughout the 
legacy system, providing more reliable services, reduced noise, improved customer 
experience, as well as providing long term cost savings to the District by reducing wear to 
the rails and vehicle suspension components and wheels. 

Joint elimination utilizes in-track Electric Flash-Butt "EFB" welding, which produces 
superior weld quality, takes much shorter welding time and preparation (approximately 1 
hour) compared to the Thermite welding (approximately 3 hours) method currently 
performed by the District. lt is the desirable welding method. 

The District sent Advance Notice to six (6) prospective proposers on January 30, 2019 and 
Office of Civil Rights (OCR) further contacted approximately 127 potential bidders on 
February 4, 2019. The District advertised in ten (10) local Bay Area newspapers and 
publications on January 31 , 2019. A Pre-Proposal Conference was held on Februaiy 14, 
2019 and attended by representatives from five (5) firms and BART staff. The District 
received one (1) proposal on March 19, 2019, from Holland, LP. 

The price proposal received from Holland, LP for the maximum 5-year Agreement tenn, is 



Rejection of Proposal submitted by Holland, LP for Request For Proposals (RFP) No. 6M3425 Systemwide (cont.) 

$67,247,000.00. The Engineer's estimate is $31,919,170.00. Holland, LP, $67,247,000.00 
proposal exceeds the Engineer's estimate by 211 % mainly due to the specialized in-track 
welding equipment, higher mobilization cost, additional labor to perform the pre
construction survey, and sub-contract an ultrasonic testing firm to perform a test of each 
weld by hand. 

District's staff concluded the close proximity to the cover boards and BAR T's unique gauge 
size prevented other firms from bidding for the work. By adding BART forces to support 
the work, such as removing and installing the cover boards during construction, along with 
performing pre-construction survey for future potential procurement, the District expects to 
receive potentially more proposal(s) that may be more consistent with the estimated costs, 
should it pursue re-procuring for track joint elimination services. It is expected that such 
changes in the scope of services should lower the cost of future price proposal(s) as the 
scope of services will be focused more on providing welding services. 

Staff recommends that the Board reject the Proposal submitted by Holland, LP and permit 
Staff to re-advertise the Request for Proposals (RFP). 

FISCAL IMP ACT: 
There is no Fiscal Impact resulting from rejection of this Proposal. 

ALTERNATIVES: 
Accept the price proposal from Holland, LP. However, awarding this Agreement exceeds the 
Engineer's Estimate by $35,327,830.00 (211 %). Alternatively, the District could perform the 
Thermite welding in house, but this process will take up to an additional ten (I 0) years. Not 
doing this joint elimination project will potentially increase the risk of service interruptions 
and increased noise for BART customers. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board adopt the following motion. 

MOTION: 
The General Manager is authorized to reject the Proposal submitted by Holland, LP for 
Request for Proposals (RFP) No. 6M3425 Systemwide Track Joint Elimination Services, to 
restructure the scope of services and to re-advertise the Request for Proposals. 



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT 

GENERAL MANAGE.R APPROVAL: 

~4"\. ~. ~ \~ T~ lo\~ 

DATE: 7/12/20 19 

Originator/Prepared by: Paul Voix 

Dept: Real Estate and Property 

Developmw:7/ ~ 

s~,e-- 1\IC, \I'\ 

GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ' D: 
Approve and forward to the Board 

BOARD IN1TIATED ITEM: No 

Controller/Treasurer District Secretary 

RICHMOND GREENWAY BIKE PATH ACCESS LICENSE AGREEMENT 

PURPOSE: To obtain Board authorization to: I) execute a revocable 20-year License 
Agreement (the "License Agreement") with the City of Riclnnond ("City") for a new access 
point to the Richmond Greenway Pedestrian/Bike Path C'Richmond Greenway"), and 2) 
amend the License Agreement as may be. required in the future to landscape improvements, 
subject to review and approval by BART staff. The initial License Agreement would cover 
an area of approximately 200 square feet, as depicted in Exhibit A to this EDD (the "Subject 
BART Property"). 

DISCUSSION: The Richmond Greenway is an approximately two mile pedestrian and bike 
path over portions of a former Atchison, Topeka and Santa Fe Railway right of way, and 
which connects to the Ohlone Greenway Pedestrian/Bike Path at the Border of El Cerrito. 
BART's transit system also occupies portions of the Atchison, Topeka and Santa Fee 
Railway right of way, and runs parallel to the Richmond Greenway in some areas. 

On December 8, 2016 BART issued Permit to Enter No. R-11.0-003-RH, which permitted a 
private developer to install a sidewalk for the City on the Subject BART Property in order to 
directly connect South 45th Street in Richmond to the Richmond Greenway. Construction 
of the sidewalk is now complete. Permit No. R-11.0-003-RH expires on December 31 , 2019. 
BART staff and the City agree that a revocable License Agreement, with a tenn running 
through December 31, 2039, is an appropriate instrument to address and memorialize the 
continued use of this access point. 

This new access point assists pedestrians and bicyclists who use the Richmond Greenway 
to connect to both the Richmond and El Cerrito Del Norte BART Stations. 



RICHMOND GREENWAY BIKE PATH ACCESS LICENSE AGREEMENT (cont.) 

In addition to authorizing the License Agreement, BART staff requests that the Board 
authorize future amendments to the License Agreement to address landscape improvements 
introduced by the City on BART property adjacent to the Richmond Greenway. 

The Office of the General Counsel will approve the License Agreement and any future 
amendments to the License Agreement, as to form. 

FISCAL IMPACT: There is no new fiscal impact from the proposed action. Savings to the 
District are realized as a result of the City assuming all maintenance and liability for the 
Subject BART Property to be used as a public access point to the Richmond Greenway. 

ALTERNATIVES: Failure to enter into the License Agreement could result in: 

1. The continued use of the Subject BART Property as an access point to the Richmond 
Greenway might occur even without an agreement with the City in place. 

2. BART having to maintai.ti. and assume liability for the Subject BA.~T Property 
currently being used by the public to access the Richmond Greenway. 

3. Without an agreement in place, the access point might be closed off and the sidewalk 
improvements removed. This would prohibit safe access to the Richmond Greenway at 
this location 

RECOMMENDATION: Adoption of the following motion. 

MOTION: The General Manager or his or her designee is authorized to enter into a 
revocable License Agreement with the City of Richmond for the operation and 
maintenance of an access point to the Richmond Greenway from South 45th Street in 
Richmond, and to amend the License Agreement to address landscape improvements on 
BART property adjacent to the Richmond Greenway. 



~ =
t 

... 

'ii ~ 

:-
-. 

·-
t 

L
; 

.g .. 
C

l} 
~
 

&
..! 

L
 . . 

a
.; 

.. 
. 

. • 
&

.J 



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT 

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL: GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D: 
~ I I J \'"( 'J'.J.'( 2.c,,, (NIA) 

I~ AA, -r~ 
DATE: 7/ 10/2019 

Originator/ Prepared by: Rod Maplcs ton 

Dept: Human Resources Administration 

! Status: Routed 

BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No 

Controller/Treasurer District Secretary BA-RC 

[ ] 

! Date Created: 7/ 10/2019 

Award of Contract for Workers' Compensation Investigative Servi.ces to Apex 
Investigation (6M4674) 

PURPOSE: To obtain Board Authorization for the General Manager to award Agreement 
No. 6M4674, Investigative Services for the District's Workers' Compensation Program, to 
APEX Investigation. This agreement shall have a term of three (3) years, with two (2) one
year options, which the District may exercise in its sole discretion, in the amount not to 
exceed $2,014,356.05 

DISCUSSION: The agreement is for Investigative Services in support of the District's 
comprehensive Workers' Compensation Program. Selection of the vendor was based on the 
proposer's qualifications and ability to provide services based on subject matter expertise, 
quality of the Project Manager and staff, as well as price. 

Advance Notices were emailed out on May 9, 2019 to 83 known providers. The Advance 
Notice and the RFP were also posted on the Procurement Portal on May 9, 2019. The RFP 
was advertised in ten (10) publications on May 9, 2019. A total of 24 firms downloaded the 
RFP from the Procurement Portal. A Pre-Proposal Meeting and Networking Session was 
held on May 20, 2019 with five (5) firms in attendance. Four (4) proposals were received on 
June 4, 2019 from the following firms: 

l.APEX Investigation, (Sacramento, CA) 
2.DigiStream Bay Area, Inc., (Alameda, CA) 
3.Frasco Investigative Services, (Burbank, CA) 
4.Freese & Gianelli Claim Services, Inc. DBA Status Investigative Group, (Modesto, CA) 



Award of Contract for Workers' Compensation Investigative Services to Apex Investigation (6M4674) 

The scope of work will include some of the following tasks: 

• Coordinate with Athens, the District's Workers' Compensation/Leave Programs Third 
Party Administrator to ensure Workers' Compensation claims are adjudicated 
accurately 

• Conduct investigations and provide supporting documentation to evaluate Short Term 
and Long Term Disability and other protected leaves are paid according to District 
prov1s10ns 

The District's Selection Committee, chaired by Contract Administration, consisted of 
representatives from the District's Human Resources Department (HR) and Office of Civil 
Rights (OCR). The Committee evaluated the proposal using the best value methodology. 
The Committee reviewed the technical proposals for compliance with the ten (10) minimum 
technical requirements set forth in the RFP. Of the four ( 4) proposers, the proposal 
submitted by Status Investigative Group did not pass minimum technical requirements and 
therefore did not advance to the next phase of the evaluation. 

The Committee evaluated and scored DigiStream Bay Area, Inc., APEX Investigation and 
Frasco Investigative Services based on their written statements of qualifications. The 
Committee then opened and evaluated each price proposal. 

Pursuant to the District's Non-Federal Small Business Program, OCR set a 5% Small 
Business Prime Preference for this Agreement for Small Business (SB) certified by the 
California Department of General Services (DGS). Apex Investigation is a certified SB, 
making it eligible for the 5% Small Business Prime Preference for this Agreement for 
evaluation purposes. 

Pursuant to the District's Non-Discrimination Program for Subcontracting, the Availability 
Percentages for this Contract are 5.5% for Minority Business Enterprises (MBEs) and 2.8% 
for Women Business Enterprises (WBEs). Apex Investigation will not be subcontracting any 
portion of the Work and therefore, the provisions of the District's Non-Discrimination 
Program for Subcontracting do not apply. 

Apex Investigation has significant subject matter expertise, short turnaround times and 
relevant experience with California public and transit agencies. Along with analysis of 
proposed price, the Selection Committee recommends the selection of Apex Investigation 
based on overall best value for the District's Workers ' Compensation Investigative Services. 
Further, Apex Investigation is a certified small business. 

FISCAL IMPACT: This agreement has a not to exceed cost limit of $2,014,356.05. 
However, no dollar amount is guaranteed to the vendor. 



Award of Contract for Workers' Compensation Investigative Services to Apex Investigation (6M4674) 

Funds required to cover this Agreement are included in the District's Workers' 
Compensation Reserves. Funding for the Workers ' Compensation Reserves in FY20 is 
included in the District's operating budget. Funding for subsequent years will be included in 
the proposed annual operating budget, which is subject to Board approval. This action is not 
anticipated to have any fiscal impact on the unprogrammed District reserves in the current 
Fiscal Year. 

The total proposal prices for the base 3 years plus two I-year options are as follows: 

Investigative Services: Agreement 6M4674 with APEX Investigation 

Year 1 $358,479.25 FY20 
Year2 $383,571.00 FY21 
Year3 $410,420.60 FY22 
Option Year 1 $430,942.60 FY23 
Option Year 2 $430,942.60 FY24 
Total Not to Exceed - 3 $2,014,356.05 
Years + 2 Option Years 

ALTERNATIVES: Cancel and re-advertise the RFP, or extend the existing Investigative 
Services vendor. Cancellation of RFP would, absent a further extension, leave the District 
without the ability to meet obligations with respect to Investigative Services for the District's 
Workers' Compensation program. 

RECOMMENDATION: Adopt the following motion: 

MOTION: The General Manager is authorized to award Agreement No. 6M4674, 
Investigative Services for the District's Workers' Compensation Program, to APEX 
Investigation for an amount not to exceed $1 ,152,470.85 for the base three-year period, 
pursuant to notification to be issued by the General Manager and subject to compliance with 
the District's protest procedures. The General Manager is also authorized to exercise Option 
Year One ( 1) for an amount not-to-exceed $430,942.60 and Option Year Two (2) for an 
amount not-to-exceed $430,942.60, subject to availability of funds. 



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT 

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL: / ~ J-.1/y let!) GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D: 

,tA.7-.. t 

DATE: 7116/2019 

Originator/Prepared by: Tim Chao 

Dept: ~ 

Signature/Date: 7 /I"'/ 2 _..0£, 

BOARD INITIATED ITEM: Yes 

Controller/Treasurer District Secretary 

[ J 

FY20-FY22 Quality of Life Initiatives Agreements for Elevator Attendants, Pits 
Stops and Homeless Outreach 

PURPOSE: 

To obtain Board authorization for the General Manager to enter into negotiations with the 
listed organizations and agencies for the specified services: 

1. Urban Alchemy, formerly Hunters Point Family, for Elevator Attendants at Civic 
Center, Powell St., Montgomery and Embarcadero stations. In FY20 not to exceed 
$1,500,000, FY21 not to exceed $1,900,00 and FY22 not to exceed $3,279,000. 
BART will enter into a separate reimbursement agreement with San Francisco 
Municipal Transportation Agency (SFMT A) for 50% of actual costs for these services. 

2. San Francisco Public Works (SFPW) for three Pit Stop locations at Powell St., 
16th St. and 24th St. In FY20 not to exceed $257,500, FY21 not to exceed $265,225 
and FY22 not to exceed $273,182. 

3. Contra Costa Health Services (CCHS) for one dedicated Homeless Outreach Team in 
Contra Costa County. In FY20 not to exceed $180,000, FY21 not to exceed $187,000 
and FY22 not to exceed $194,000. 

4. Alameda County Healthcare Services Agency (ACHSA) for one dedicated Homeless 
Outreach Team (HOT) in Alameda County. In FY20 not to exceed $250,000, FY21not 
to exceed $257,500 and FY22 not to exceed $265,225. 

5. San Mateo County Human Services Agency (SMCHSA) for one dedicated Homeless 
Outreach Team (HOT) in San Mateo County and San Francisco International Airport 
(SFO). In FY20 not to exceed $250,000, FY21 not to exceed $257,500 and FY22 not 
to exceed $265,225. BART will enter into a separate reimbursement agreement with 
SFO for up to 50% of the costs based on the actual time spent at the airport. 



FY20-FY22 Quality of Life Initiatives Agreements for Elevator Attendants, Pits Stops and Homeless Outreach 

DISCUSSION: 

The BART system and particularly the four downtown San Francisco stations -
Embarcadero, Montgomery, Powell St. and Civic Center - continue to see a significant 
presence of homeless individuals and illegal drug activity. This is consistent with the 
experience of cities and counties across the Bay Area. BART customer service surveying 
has determined that our customers expect BART to address the social issues in stations and 
on trains. In response, BART has undertaken a comprehensive quality oflife campaign, 
which includes Elevator Attendants, Pit Stop restrooms, and Homeless Outreach services. 

The FY20 adopted budget provided funds continue and expand the elevator attendant 
program to cover all four downtown San Francisco stations, continue to provide pit stop 
restrooms and San Francisco and Contra Costa county Homeless Outreach Teams and 
provide new Homeless Outreach Teams in Alameda and San Mateo Counties. 

This action allows the General Manager to negotiate and execute successor or extension 
amendments for these agreements for FY20, FY2 l and FY22, pending budget adoption by 
the Board of Directors in FY21 and FY22. 

Elevator Attendant Program 

The Elevator Attendant Program was launched on April 3 0, 2018 and was renewed in FYl 9 
to address sanitation and safety and security issues in the BART station elevators. 
Attendants are in the street and platform elevators at Civic Center and Powell St. stations 
during BART operating hours. The attendants greet customers, operate the elevator, collect 
data on the number of users and their demographics and deter inappropriate behavior in the 
elevator. The program has been very popular with BART customers, particularly those 
dependent on the elevators. 

The current contract is with Urban Alchemy, formerly Hunters Point Family. Urban 
Alchemy was the only vendor of elevator attendant services considered for the program. 
Urban Alchemy has unique insights regarding the homeless population in and around 
downtown San Francisco BART Stations and has ensured the success of the elevator 
attendant program. This organization has successfully served the City and County of San 
Francisco on a number of similar projects including the Pit Stop Program to reduce the use 
of street restroom facilities for unlawful purposes. 

In addition, the use of Urban Alchemy advances an important public policy objective to 
provide job training, employment, and workforce development opportunities to formerly 
incarcerated, at-risk, local residents who are eligible to work but face barriers to 
employment. 

For the reasons stated above, including Urban Alchemy's on-going relationship with our 



FY20-FY22 Quality of Life Initiatives Agreements for Elevator Attendants. Pits Stops and Homeless Outreach 

project partner, the City and County of San Francisco, the services sought under these 
agreements have not been solicited through a competitive process. 

In June 2019, BART and SFMTA successfully secured a MTC Lifeline Grant in the amount 
of $2,600,000 that provides $1,300,000 per year in FY20 and FY2 l to help offset elevator 
attendant costs. BART and SFMTA have agreed to use the grant funds to expand the 
elevator attendant initiative to Montgomery and Embarcadero stations. This grant will go 
directly to BART who will apply it toward the program costs and then bill SFMTA 50% for 
the remaining costs. 

Staff is currently working on the launch date for early Fall 2019. 

Pit Stop Program 

The San Francisco Public Works' Pit Stop Program provides clean and safe public toilets, 
as well as used-needle receptacles and dog waste stations, in the City's most impacted 
neighborhoods. The restroom units have running water, soap and hand towels, and are 
maintained by on site attendants to a high standard. The program began in the Tenderloin 
District in 2014 at three sites, sparked by a plea from neighborhood middle schoolers who 
had to navigate around human waste on their walk to school. Today, the Pit Stop restrooms 
operate at 25 sites in 13 neighborhoods. Three locations adjacent to BART stations; Powell 
St., 16th St. and 24th St., are co-funded by BART. 

Homeless Outreach Programs: 

Contra Costa Homeless Outreach Team 

While homelessness is most acute in San Francisco, it also affects other parts of the District. 
On January 7, 2019, Contra Costa Health Services launched one Homeless Outreach Team 
dedicated to BART. It consists of two individuals who work 40 hours per week to engage 
those experiencing homelessness on BART property and under aerial tracks and connect 
them to available services and shelters in this county. 

Alameda County Homeless Outreach Team 

In FY20, BART is looking to expand the Homeless Outreach Team program to the 
remaining counties served by BART. BART is currently in discussions with the Alameda 
County Healthcare Services Agency to launch one dedicated team to engage those 
experiencing homelessness on BART property and under aerial tracks and connect them to 
available services and shelters in this county 

San Mateo County Homeless Outreach Team 

Also, in FY20, BART is working with San Mateo County Human Services Agency to launch 



• 

FY20-FY22 Quality of Life Initiatives Agreements for Elevator Attendants, Pits Stops and Homeless Outreach 

its own Homeless Outreach Team for San Mateo County and San Francisco International 
Airport. The team will consist of one dedicated team to engage those experiencing 
homelessness on BART property and under aerial tracks and connect them to available 
services and shelters in this county. 

FISCAL IMP ACT: 

Quality of Life Initiatives were funded in the amount of $2,000,000 as part of the FY20 
adopted operating budget (funded by the general fund) and include the following: Elevator 
Attendant Program (four downtown San Francisco stations), Pit Stop Program (three San 
Francisco stations), and Homeless Outreach Teams in Contra Costa, Alameda and San 
Mateo counties. The Board approved a separate action for San Francisco HOT in FY18 
that continues through FY22. 

Elevator Attendant Program 

In FY20, the total cost to continue the Elevator Attendant Program at Civic Center and 
Powell St. stations for twelve months and to add Montgomery and Embarcadero stations for 
nine months is approximately $2,800,000. After application of the MTC Lifeline Grant of 
$1,300,000, the BART and SFMTA contribution will be $749,000 each. 

For FY21, assuming $.50 hourly wage increase for Attendants and 12 full months of service 
for all four downtown stations the cost will increase to $3,200,000. After application of the 
MTC Lifeline Grant of $1,300,000, the BART and SFMTA contribution will be $950,000 
each. 

For FY22, assuming another $.50 hourly increase the cost will increase to $3,279,000. This 
expense will be split between BART and SFMTA. Both agencies will continue to work on 
securing grant funding to help offset costs. 

Expense assumption reflect recent San Francisco local law changes. Specifically, an increase 
in minimum wage, two weeks of legal vacation, two weeks of legally required sick time, plus 
one mandatory week of training. 

Funding for FY21 and FY22, will be included in the proposed annual operating budget, 
subject to Board approval. 

This action is not anticipated to have any Fiscal Impact on unprogrammed District reserves 
in the current Fiscal Year. 

FY20 total funding for the Elevator Attendant Program will not exceed $749,000 and will 
come from the FY20 Public Safety Initiatives operating budget (Dept #1011276 /Acct 
#681301). 



FY20-FY22 Quality of Life Initiatives Agreements for Elevator Attendants, Pits Stops and Homeless Outreach 

Pit Stop Program 

In FY20, the total cost to continue the three existing Pit Stop locations at Powell St., 16th St. 
and 24th St. stations for FY20 is $514,000. This sum will be evenly split between BART and 
San Francisco Public Works. BART will enter into an agreement with Public Works for the 
amount of $257,500. 

For FY21, a 3% cost escalation is anticipated. This will increase the BART share to 
$265,225. 

For FY22, a 3% cost escalation is anticipated. The BART share is expected to be $273,182. 

Funding for FY2 l and FY22, will be included in the proposed annual operating budget, 
subject to Board approval. 

This action is not anticipated to have any Fiscal Impact on unprogrammed District reserves 
in the current Fiscal Year. 

FY20 total funding for the Pit Stop Program will not exceed $514,000 and will come from 
the FY20 Public Safety Initiatives operating budget (Dept #1011276 /Acct #681301). 

Homeless Outreach Programs: 

Contra Costa County Homeless Outreach Team 

In FY20, one dedicated Homeless Outreach Team in Contra Costa County costs 
approximately $240,000 annually, of which $60,000 is covered by Contra Costa Health 
Services (CCHS) and $180,000 is covered by BART. BART will enter into an agreement 
with CCHS for the amount up to $180,000. 

In FY21, the cost will escalate approximately 3% and total $250,000 annually. The BART 
share js anticipated to be $187,000. BART will enter into an agreement with CCHS for the 
amount up to $187,000. 

In FY22, the cost will escalate approximately 3% and total $259,000 annually. BART will 
enter into an agreement with CCHS for the amount up to $194,000. 

Alameda County Homeless Outreach Team 

In FY20, Alameda County Healthcare Services Agency (ACHSA) will provide one 
dedicated Homeless Outreach Team in Alameda County for approximately $250,000 
annually. There is no cost sharing per se, although ACHSA will contribute in-kind labor for 
administering their services. 



FY20-FY22 Quality of Life Initiatives Agreements for Elevator Attendants, Pits Stops and Homeless Outreach 

In FY21, the cost will escalate approximately 3 % and total $257,500. 

In FY22, the cost will escalate approximately 3% and total $265,225. 

San Mateo County Homeless Outreach Team 

In FY20, San Mateo County Human Services Agency (SMCHSA) will provide one 
dedicated Homeless Outreach Team in San Mateo County for approximately $250,000 
annually. SFO is expected to participate in the cost sharing up to 50% of total costs, based 
on the actual time spent at the airport. BART will contract with San Mateo County for the 
full amount and bill SFO for their share. 

In FY21, the cost will escalate approximately 3% and total $257,500 with the same cost 
sharing arrangement between SFO and BART. 

In FY22, the cost will escalate approximately 3% and total $265,225 with the same cost 
sharing arrangement between SFO and BART. 

Funding for FY2 l and FY22, will be included in the proposed annual operating budget, 
subject to Board approval. 

This action is not anticipated to have any Fiscal Impact on unprogrammed District reserves 
in the current Fiscal Year. 

FY20 total funding for the Homeless Outreach Program will not exceed $555,000 and will 
come from the FY20 Public Safety Initiatives operating budget (Dept #1011276 /Acct 
#681301). 

ALTERNATIVES: 
The alternative is to notauthorize one of more of these Agreements or to limit the duration. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that theBoard adopt the following motion: 

MOTION: 

The Board authorizes the General Manager to enter into negotiations with the listed agencies 
for the specified services: 

1. Urban Alchemy for elevator attendants at Civic Center, Powell St., Montgomery and 
Embarcadero stations. In FY20 not to exceed $1,500,000, FY21 not to exceed 
$1,900,00 and FY22 not to exceed $3,279,000. BART will enter into a separate 
reimbursement agreement with San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency 



FY20-FY22 Quality of Life Initiatives Agreements for Elevator Attendants, Pits Stops and Homeless Outreach 

(SFMTA) for 50% of actual costs for these services. 
2. San Francisco Public Works (SFPW) for three Pit Stop locations at Powell St., 

16th St. and 24th St. In FY20 not to exceed $257,500, FY21 not to exceed $265,225 
and FY22 not to exceed $273,182. 

3. Contra Costa Health Services (CCHS) for one dedicated Homeless Outreach Team in 
Contra Costa County. In FY20 not to exceed $180,000, FY21 not to exceed $187,000 
and FY22 not to exceed $194,000. 

4. Alameda County Healthcare Services Agency (ACHSA) for one dedicated Homeless 
Outreach Team (HOT) in Alameda County. In FY20 not to exceed $250,000, FY2lnot 
to exceed $257,500 and FY22 not to exceed $265,225. 

5. San Mateo County Human Services Agency (SMCHSA) for one dedicated Homeless 
Outreach Team (HOT) in San Mateo County and San Francisco International Airport 
(SFO). In FY20 not to exceed $250,000, FY21 not to exceed $257,500 and FY22 not 
to exceed $265,225. BART will enter into a separate reimbursement agreement with 
SFO for up to 50% of the costs based on the actual time spent at the airport. 



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT 

MANAGER APPROVAL: GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D: 
0 f'J V:.-11 Z'4J 

;/,,,{. ~ 
DATE: 7110/2019 BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No 

Controller/Treasurer District Secretary BARC 

[ l 

Single Source of Procurement for the Independent Public Safety Tunnel Radio 
System 

PURPOSE: 

To request Board authorization for the General Manager to enter into negotiations with 
Motorola Solutions, Inc. (Motorola) as the single source of procurement, in accordance with 
California Public Contract Code Section 20227, for an independent public safety tunnel 
radio syste~ subject to funding availability. 

DISCUSSION: 

Staff seeks Board authority to enter into direct negotiations for a contract with Motorola 
Solutions, Inc. as the single of procurement to execute a contract for the purchase of three 
Motorola 5-channel trunked radio base stations with new network connections to the existing 
City and County of San Francisco (CCSF) and East Bay Regional Communication System 
(EBRCSA) radio cores at a cost of$1,930,000. 

Only the specified Motorola equipment is technically and functionally compatible with the 
existing CCSF and EBRCSA Motorola networks. This acquisition will enable personnel of 
regional public safety agencies to switch automatically from above ground systems directly 
to underground Motorola radio systems for both routine and emergency public safety 
operations in BART tunnels. In order to ensure full compatibility with the existing Motorola 
networks, Staff proposes a single source procurement of Motorola equipment. No other 
equipment would be fully compatible with the existing Motorola systems of EBRCSA and 
CCSF. 



Single Source of Procurement for the Independent Public Safety Tunnel Radio System 

Public radio systems in tunnels are essential to BART Operations and incident command 
staff and are utilized for critical communication among the BART Operations Control Center 
(OCC), train operators, maintenance staff, BART Police Dispatch, and law enforcement 
officials. BARTs OCC requires the capability to override automated train operation controls 
(ATO) by issuing radio instructions to train operators. The proposed independent public 
safety tunnel radio system (the Project) creates greater interoperability of public radio 
communications between the various public safety agencies. 

The BART System extends through multiple cities and counties which represent several 
public safety agency jurisdictions. Most of the other public safety agencies currently use 
either the CCSF or EBRCSA' s Motorola radio systems. Creating greater interoperability for 
the independent radio systems of other agencies throughout the BART System increases 
public safety and achieves greater public safety interoperability and versatility for BART and 
regional public safety agencies. 

BART currently has 37 miles of underground radio antenna systems to support public safety 
radio communications. This Project would add three (3) Motorola 5-channel trunked radio 
base stations to the existing tunnel and underground distributed radio antenna systems, 
including network connections to the existing CCSF and EBRCSA Motorola core systems. 
These Motorola radio systems will be fully independent of, and create essential redundant 
capacity to, the BART public safety radio system. Adding Motorola radio base stations and 
integrating the stations with CCSF and EBRCSA will to provide radio system roaming both 
for regional public safety agencies and for the BART System and will be available for 
temporary use in the event of emergencies. The existing CCSF and EBRCSA independent 
Motorola public safety networks will be extended through BART tunnels to provide 
continuous radio coverage both above and below ground. 

In addition to meeting the Public Contract Code requirements for a single source 
procurement, this Project will be funded by a September 2018 Transit Security Grant 
Program (TSGP) Federal Emergency Management Administration (FEMA) grant for Public 
Safety Land Mobile Radio Services (Resilience, Interoperability and Disaster Recovery). 
This grant specifies that Motorola radio systems will be added to the BART public safety 
underground radio system to integrate with existing CCSF and EBRCSA systems. 

The grant specifies addition of three Motorola 5-channel trunked radio base stations with 
new network connections to the existing CCSF and EBRCSA radio cores, to connect with 
BART's existing underground antenna systems and provide radio system roaming for 
regional public safety agencies. 

Accordingly, as described above, the proposed purchase from Motorola of Motorola's 5 
channel trunked radio based stations will provide modifications and enhancements to 
BAR T's existing underground public safety radio system. 



Single Source of Procurement for the Independent Public Safety Tunnel Radio System 

Pursuant to California Public Contract Code Section 20227, the Board may direct the 
purchase of any supply, equipment or material without observance of competitive bidding 
upon a finding by two-thirds of all members of the Board that there is only a single source of 
procurement and that the purchase is for the sole purpose of duplicating or modifying 
equipment currently in use. 

The Office of the General Counsel will approve the contract as to form. 

CAPIT ALFISCAL IMP ACT: 

Funding in the amount of $1,930,000 for single sourceof procurement for an Independent 
Tunnel Radio System is included in the totalproject budget for FMS# 20AJ002 - Adjacent 
Agency Radio System - Tunnels. 

The table below lists funding assigned to thereferenced project and is included to track 
funding history against spendingauthority. Funds needed to meet this request will be 
expended from thefollowing source: 

Proposed Funding 
FIG 3762-FEMA FY18 Transit Security Grant $2,000,000 

TOTAL $2,000,000 

As of July 9, 2019, $2,000,000 is the total budget for this project. BART has expended $0, 
committed $0, and reserved $0 to date. This action will commit $1,930,000, leaving an 
available fund balance of $70,000 in these fund sources for this project. 

The Office of Controller/Treasurer certifies that funds are currently available to meet this 
obligation. 

This action is not anticipated to have any Fiscal Impact on unprogrammed District reserves. 

ALTERNATIVES: 

Do not authorize the General Manager to negotiate a single source of procurement Contract 
for radio equipment with Motorola Solutions, Inc. which would keep BART from improving 
its public safety radio system and its interface with CCSF and EBRCSA's radio systems. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff, recommends that the Board adopt the following motion. 

MOTION: 

Pursuant to California Public Contract Code Section 20227, the Board finds that Motorola 
Solutions, Inc. is the single source for the purchase of equipment for the Project, and that 
the purchase is for ~e purpose of duplicating or replacing equipment in use at the District. 



Single Source of Procurement for the Independent Public Safety Tunnel Radio System 

The Board authorizes the General Manager to enter into direct negotiations and execute a 
contract with Motorola Solutions, Inc. for the procurement of an Independent Public Safety 
Tunnel Radio System for an amount not to exceed $1,930,000 plus applicable taxes. 



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT 

GENERALMANAGER APPROVAL: ,~ 'Ju', ~ 

WArl.1Lc-
GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D: 
Approve and Forward to the E&O Committee 

DATE: 2/21 /20 19 BOARD INITIATED ITEM: Yes 

Originator/Prepared by: Denise McDonald \ en ~ ou nsel 

Dept: PD&C - Statio ns .,; 

oen, ~ µ d) I>\ e-< e 

Controlle r/Treasurer District Secr etary 

Signature/Date: 

-:f /1 ~ / 2':J { "J [ J [ 1 [ 1 

Award of Contract No. 07EA-120, 19th St Oakland Station Modernization Project 

PURPOSE: 

To obtain Board's authorization for the General Managerto award Contract No. 07EA-120, 

19th St Oakland StationModernization Project, to Proven Management, Inc., of Oakland, 
CA. 

DISCUSSION: 

The Work of this Contract is part of the District's Station Modernization Program. It 
will provide for the reconfiguration of the 19th Street Station concourse area and 
consolidation of three existing paid areas into one paid area and enclosing the existing 
elevator into the paid area. In addition, the Work will involve the installation of a new 
elevator between the platform and the paid area of the concourse, installation of new 
five-foot high fare barriers, LED lighting, replacement of the current primary station 
agent booth, addition of bike infrastructure improvements and renovation and reopening 
of the pubJic restrooms. The Contract also includes an option work item ('Option 1') for 
the painting of wall murals on walls adjacent to the trackways. 

On November 19, 2018, an Advance Notice to Bidders was emailed to 297 
prospective bidders, including 22 Plan Rooms. The Contract was advertised and 
posted to the BART Procurement Portal on November 20, 2018. A total of 52 firms 
downloaded copies of the Bid Documents. A Pre-Bid meeting and Jobsite tour was 
held on December 3, 2018 with eight (8) prospective Bidders attending. Five (5) 
addenda to the Contract were issued. Two (2) Bids were received and publicly 



Award Contract 07EA-120, 19th St Oakland Station Modernization Project 

opened on February 26, 2019. The Bids received, and the Engineer's Estimate are 
shown below: 

BIDDER / BASE OPTION l TOTAL 
I 

LOCATION BID BID BID PRICE 
Proven Management, [nc $32,691,000 $150,000 $32,841 ,000 

Oak.land, CA 
Clark Construction $33,446,000 $45 ,800 $33,491,800 

California, LP 
Engineer' s Estimate $20,512,154 $117,678 $20,629,832 

After review by District staff, the apparent low Bid submitted by Proven Management, 
Inc. has been detennined to be fair and reasonable and responsive to the solicitation. 
The Total Bid Price of$32,841,000 is 59% above the Engineer's Estin1ate. The 
Engineer's Estimate did not sufficiently capture the effects of tariffs on commodities, 
shortage of qualified labor in several trades, and current market conditions. The 
combination of these factors ultimately resulted in the large variance between the 
Engineer's Estimate and the Bids received. Since the solicitation resulted in only two 
Bids, the Bid prices received represent a less competitive Bidding environment. With 
the two Bidders' Bid prices being within 2% of each other, the Total Bid Price 
submitted by the low Bidder has been deemed fair given the cun-ent market conditions. 
A review of Proven Management Inc. ' s business experience and financial capabilities 

has resulted in a determination that the Bidder is responsible. 

District staff has determined that this work is statutorily exempt from the provisions of 
the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Title 14, California 
Code of Regulations, Section 152 725( a), because it consists of modernization of an 
existing facility to meet an increase in passenger service. In addition, since the 
Contract is federally-funded, it is subject to the provisions of the National 
Environmental Policy Act (NEPA). The federal fundjng agency, the Federal Transit 
Administration (FTA), has conctUTed with BART that the project qualifies under a 
categorical exclusion from NEPA requirements under 23 CFR Part 771.118 (c)(5) 
because it involves the promotion of transportation accessibility and safety associated 



Award Contract 07EA-120, 19th St Oakland Station Modemization Project 

with the implementation of project improvements. 

This Contract was advertised pursuant to the District's Disadvantaged Business 
Enterprise ("DBE") Program requirements. The Office of Civil Rights reviewed the 
scope of work for this Contract and determined that there were Small Business Entity 
(SBE) subcontracting opportunities; therefore, an SBE pa11icipation goal of 17% was 
set for this Contract. The low Bidder, Proven Management, Inc., cmrunitted to 
subcontracting 18.15% to SBEs. The Office of Civil Rights has detemuned that Proven 
Management, Inc. has met the SBE participation goal set for this Contract. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Funding in the amount of$32,69I,OOO for Contract 07EA-I20 is included in the project 

budget 07EA011, 19th St Oakland Station Modernization Project. The Office of 
Controller/Treasurer certifies that funds are currently available to meet this obligation. 
The following table lists the funding assigned to project 07EAO 11 and is included to 
reflect the funding history against spending authority. Funds needed to meet this request 
will be expended from the following: 

FUND FUND DESCRIPTION SOURCE AMOUNT 
NO. 

3610 FTA CA-2018-013-00 Tiger Grant Federal $6,321,688 

535A FY2010-11 PROP lB-PTMISEA State $8,417,132 

535B FY14-15 Prop lB PTMISEA Fund State $4,874,930 

802A 2017A Measure RR GOB Local $11.600,000 

8603 FYI 9 Cap Alloc Station & Access BART $1.018,000 

5414 State Trans. Improvement Prog. STIP State $3,726,000 

TOTAL $35,957,750 

As of July 11, 2019, 2019, $35 ,957,750 is the total budget for this project. BART has 
expended $356,106 and $172,527 has been committed for other actions. This action 
will commit $32,691 ,000 leaving an available fund balance of $2,738,117 for this 



Award Contract 07EA-120, 19th St Oakland Station Modernization Project 

project. 

This action is not anticipated to have any Fiscal Impact on unprogrammed District 
reserves. 

The project has additionally been allocated $10M in Alameda County Measure BB 
funds from the special, "Named Capital" category that has been set aside for BART. 
The Measw-e BB funds will be reflected in the project budget upon execution of a 
funding agreement. 

ALTERNATIVES: 

The Board may elect to reject all bids and authorize staff to rebid the Contract. The 
FTA would need to approve tbe extension and rebidding of the Contract. Rebidding the 
Contract will result in additional time and cost to the District with no assurance that it 
will result in a lower Bid price. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is reconunended that the Board adopt the following motion: 

MOTION: 

The General Manager is authorized to award Contract No. 07EA-120, 19th St Oakland 
Station Modernization Project, to Proven Management, Inc for the Bid Price of 
$32,691 ,000 pursuant to notification to be issued by the General Manager, and subject 
to the District's protest procedures and FTA requirements related to protests. 

The General Manager is further authorized to exercise Option 1, Track Wall Mural 
Painting, subject to certification by the Controllerffreasurer that funding is available. 



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT 

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL: GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D: 

BOARD INITlATED ITEM: No 

Controller/Treasurer District Secretary 

[ ] [ l 

Award of Agreement No. 6M3426 Production Rail Profiling Services 

PURPOSE: 
To request Board authorization for the General Manager to award Agreement No. 6M3426 
for Production Rail Profiling Services to Loram Maintenance of Way, Inc., Hamel, MN, in an 
amount not to exceed $12,636,749.00. 

DISCUSSION: 
Production rail profiling optimizes the wheel rail interface by reshaping the rail head to match 
the shape of the wheels. This results in reduced noise, enhanced rider comfort, and cost 
savings form the reduced wear on wheels and rails. Additionally the profiling will reduce rail 
corrugation waves on the rail head surface which is the primary cause noise complaints. This 
Agreement will remain in place for a duration of up to 3 years, while the District owned rail 
grinders are being upgraded and repaired. 

Request for Proposals (RFP) No. 6M3426 was issued to engage a firm to conduct 
production rail profiling services. 

Advance Notice to Proposers was e-mailed on December 24, 2018, to four (4) prospective 
proposers. Due to the specialized nature of this work there were only four qualified 
proposers. RFP No. 6M3426 was advertised on December 21, 2018, in several Bay Area 
newspapers and publications and posted to the BART procurement portal. A Pre-Proposal 
Conference was held on January 7, 2019 and was attended by representatives from two (2) 
firms and BART staff. One (1) proposal was received on March 12, 2019. 

Loram Maintenance of Way, Inc. ("Loram"), is the sole proposer. The Technical Proposal 
from Loram was opened on March 14, 2019. After review of the proposal submitted by 
Loram it was determined that Loram had taken significant exceptions to the Agreement. 



Award of Agreement No. 6M3426 Production Rail Profiling Services (cont.) 

Negotiations related to those exceptions were held and the exception issues were ultimately 
resolved. The price proposal was opened and evaluated on May 15, 2019. In accordance 
with the RFP, the selection is based on the lowest-priced technically acceptable proposal 
methodology. The Price proposal from Loram Maintenance of Way, Inc. is $12,636,749.00 
and was the only proposal received. 

The Engineer's estimate was $8,705,187.60. Loram's $12,636,749.00 proposal is above 
Engineer's estimate due to increasing strength of the economy and higher cost to modify the 
equipment to meet BART's 66" wide gage track. 

The Source Selection Committee determined that the Price Proposal submitted by Loram 
Maintenance of Way, Inc., was fair and reasonable and therefore recommends Loram 
Maintenance of Way, Inc., for award. 

Pursuant to the District's Non-Federal Small Business Program, the Office of Civil Rights 
set a 7% Local Small Business Prime Preference for this Contract for Small Businesses 
certified by the California Department of General Services ("DGS") and verified as Local 
(i.e., located in Alameda, Contra Costa or San Francisco counties) by the District. It was 
determined that there were no certified Local Small Businesses certified by the DGS among 
the responsive Bidders and, therefore, the Local Small Business Prime Preference is not 
applicable. 

Pursuant to the District's Non-Discrimination Program for Subcontracting, the Availability 
Percentages for this Agreement are 5.5% for Minority Business Enterprises ("MBE"s) and 
2.8% for Women Business Enterprises ("WBE"s). Loram will not be subcontracting any 
portion of the Work and therefore, the provisions of the District's Non-Discrimination 
Program for Subcontracting do not apply. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding in the amount of $12,636,749.00 to award Agreement No. 6M3426, Production Rail 
Profiling Services is included in the total budget for FMS#15CQ017 Rail Reprofiling 
Districtwide. The table below lists funding assigned to the referenced project and is included 
to track funding history against spending authority. Funds needed to meet this request will be 
expended from the following: 

Source 
BART 

Fund Description 
Measure RR General Qb]jgation Bond 
Total 

Total 
$22,075,180.00 
$22,075,180.00 

As of June 7, 2019, $22,075,180.00 is the total budget for this project. BART has expended 
$1,105,023.00, committed $107,371.00 and reserved $3,093,700.00 to date for other actions. 
This action will commit $12,636,749.00, leaving an available fund balance of $5,132,336.00 



Award of Agreement No. 6M3426 Production Rail Profiling Services (cont.) 

in fund sources for this project. 

The office of the Controller/freasurer certifies that finds are currently available to meet this 
obligation. This action is not anticipated to have any Fiscal Impact on unprogrammed 
District Reserves. 

ALTERNATIVES: 
Reject this Proposal and re-advertise the RFP. Because only one (1) bid was received, it is 
unlikely that the new Proposal will lead to increased competition or lower prices. Delaying 
the project start will potentially cost the District more in the long term for wheel replacement. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board adopt the following motion. 

MOTION: 
The General Manager is authorized to award Agreement No. 6M3426 to Loram Maintenance 
of Way, Inc., to provide Production Rail Profiling Services for a one (1) year base period 
with (2) two, (1) one-year options, for an amount not to exceed $12,636,749.00, pursuant to 
notification to be issued by the General Manager. 



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT 

GENE~ A.GER APPR°l-'1)L: J '7 Tv/-c (l 04-' 
lllwl- M;f. ~ 

DATE: 7/2/2019 

Or iginator/Prepared by: Maansii C hirag 

Sheth 

Dept: Maintenance and Engineer ing 

Signature/Date:~ l l\\ A, 
~~'f.\2..-~Q,q 

GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D: 
Approve and forward it to the Board 

BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No 

Controller/Treasurer District Secr etary 

[ l 

Change Orders to Contract No. 09DJ-150A, TBT Cathodic Protection Reference 
Cell Replacement 

PURPOSE: 

To authorize the General Manager to execute Change Orders 9 .1 through 16 (8 in total) to 
Contract No. 09DJ-l 50A for TBT Cathodic Protection Reference Cell Replacement, in an 
amount not to exceed $380,588, and which includes an estimated sixty-one (61) 
compensable calendar day extension to the Contract duration. 

DISCUSSION: 

On May 28, 2018 the Board of Directors authorized the General Manager to award Contract 
No. 09DJ-150A TBT Cathodic Protection Reference Cell Replacement, to DMZ Builders in 
the amount of $949,850. This Contract is for the replacement of existing non-operational 
reference cells. These are critical components of the Cathodic Protection (CP) Monitoring 
System and need to be functional in order to validate the performance of the TBT CP 
system. 

To date, the District has executed nine (9) Change Orders in the amount of $249,149. 
Accordingly, the cumulative amount of contingency spent to date is $94,120 or 9.91 % of the 
original Contract amount. 

Project Staff has issued Cost Proposal Change Notices. The forecast amount of those 
prospective Change Orders is $380,588. 



Change Orders to Contract No. 09DJ- l 50A, TBT Cathodic Protection Reference Cell Replacement 

Total Base Bid Amount: $949,850 
-

Contingency Spent to-date: $94,120 9.91% 

Potential Change Orders: $380,588 40% 

Revised Contract Amount: $1,424,558 

Descriptions of the Change Order costs expected to be incurred is set forth below. These 
Change Orders are necessary for completion of the Contract. 

1. Change Orders needed due to impacts from the TBT Retrofit Project: 

• Change Orders 9 .1 and 16-Anticipated Cost: $131 ,000 to complete the Contract Work 
during Weekends, including delay costs for Time Extension of 61 Days to the original 
Contract Duration. 

These changes are necessary because of the changes associated with the TBT Seismic 
Retrofit Project. The original Contract included Construction Work during regular 
Work hours. However, after this Contract's Award, the acceleration to the TBT Seismic 
Retrofit Project, required that a portion of the Reference Ce11 Project Construction 
Work be performed during Weekends. 

• Change Order Nos. 11, 12-Anticipated Cost: $121 ,000 to compensate DMZ for 
removal of the two newly installed panels and pin brazing conduits to resolve conflicts 
with Retrofit Project; for the direct costs incurred due to the TBT Lower Gallery 
Access Restrictions imposed, and inefficiency cost incurred due to limited access to 
Upper Gallery during Swing Shift hours. 

2. Change Orders needed due to Differing Site Conditions: 

• Change Order No.IO-Anticipated Cost: $13,500 to compensate DMZ for developing a 
preliminary welding plan, not a part of the Original Contract to weld the steel tabs 
inside the Top Hats. 

• Change Order No.13 and 15-Anticipated Cost: $45,088 for the conduit and cables 
quantity overrun from the original estimated quantity indicated in the Bid Schedule of 
Bid Form. 

• Change Order No.14-Anticipated Cost: $70,000 for providing a Roadway Worker 
Certified (R WP) labor to act as a second radio check attendant to remain in position to 
provide effective warning below an open access hatch to the Upper Gallery. 



Change Orders to Contract No. 09DJ- l 50A, TBT Cathodic Protection Reference Cell Replacement 

All Change Orders will be reviewed for approval as to form by the Office of the General 
Counsel prior to execution. 

FISCAL Th1P ACT: 

Funding in the amount of$380,588 for award of Change Orders to Contract No. 09DJ-150A 
is included in the total Project budget for FMS #09DJ005 -TBT Cathodic Protection 
Reference Cell Replacement. 

The table below lists funding assigned to the referenced project and is included to track 
funding history against spending authority. Funds needed to meet this request will be 
expended from the following sources: 

~ 

Fund Source Amounts 

FIG 3609 -FY16 Capital Improvements CA-2017-029 2,000,000 

FIG 8529 - FY15 BART Operating Allocation to Capital 500,000 

FIG 8530- FY16 BART Operating Allocation to Capital 140,000 

TOTAL 2,640,000 

As of 07/02/2019, $2,640,000 is the total budget for this project. BART has expended 
$1,777,090, committed $240,551 , and reserved $0 to date. This action will commit $380,588, 
leaving an available fund balance of $241,771 in these fund sources for this project. 

The Office of the Controller/ Treasurer certifies that funds are currently available to meet this 
obligation. 

This action is not anticipated to have any Fiscal Impact on unprogram.med District Reserves. 

ALTERNATIVES: 
The Board may elect not to authorize the execution of these Change Orders. Failure to issue 
these Change Orders could result in the following: 

• Termination of the Contract, and then re-bidding it for completion of the Contract 
Work once the Retrofit Project is over, resulting in additional costs. 

• Without the installation of the reference cells, BART is not able to verify if the TBT 
outer steel shell is receiving adequate cathodic protection in accordance with the NACE 
Standards. 



Change Orders to Contract No. 09DJ- J 50A, TBT Cathodic Protection Reference Cell Replacement 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Adopt the following motion. 

MOTION: 

Authorize the General Manager to execute the Change Orders 9. I through 16 ( a total of 8 
Change Orders) for Contract number 09DJ-150A, TBT Cathodic Protection Reference Cell 
Replacement for a total estimated amount of $380,588, with a time extension to the Contract 
Duration of 61 Days. 



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT 

ATTACHMENT #1 
CHANGE ORDER SUMMARY 

BACKGROUND 

Name of Contractor: 

Contract No./NTP: 

Contract Description: 

Percent Complete as of 7/15/2019 

COST 

Original Contract A ward Amount 

Change Orders: 

Other than Board Authorized C.O.s 

Pending Board Authorized C.O.s 

Subtotal of all Change Orders 

Revised Contract Amount: 

SCHEDULE 

Original Contract Duration: 
Time Extension to Date: 
Time Extension Due to Pending COs: 
Revised Contract Duration 

DMZ Builders Co., Inc. 

09DJ-150A I July 25, 2018 

TBT Cathodic Protection Reference Cell Replacement 

85% 

% of Award CO Totals Contract Amount 

9.91% 

40.07% 

49.98% 

$ 94,120.42 

$380,588.00 

$474,708.42 

360 Days 
0Days 
61 Days 
421 Days 

$ 949,850.00 

$1 ,424,588.42 

SUMMARY REASON FOR THESE CHANGE ORDER(S) 

To address access and coordination conflicts with TBT Retrofit Project and differing site conditions 
encountered. 



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT 

GENE~~AGERAPPROVAL: ,~ J',Ay lcJ' 

/LU-~-?-... -
GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D: 
Ye:; 

DATE: 7/ 16/2019 BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No 

Originator/Prepared by: Mitra Mobeb Controller/Treasurer District Secretary 

Signature/Da; / f r /I~ 
( ] [ ] 

Execution of Change Order No. 001 to Contract no. 47CJ-120, with Cubic 
Transportation Systems, Inc. 

PURPOSE: 
To obtain Board authorization for the execution of Change Order No. 001 for additional 
Clipper Vending Machine (CVM) transports, in the amount of $687,911, to Contract No. 
47CJ-120, Procurement ofTicket Vending Machine Transport Installation Kits with Software 
Modifications to Dispense Clipper(R) Cards. 

DISCUSSION: 
On January 28, 2016, the Board authorized the BART General Manager to enter into 
negotiations and execute a Contract to Cubic Transportation Systems, Inc. (Cubic) for the 
procurement of additional Clipper vending machine transport installation kits and software 
modifications to dispense Clipper cards. 

On July 20, 2016, BART issued Notice to Proceed to Cubic. By December 2017, Clipper 
card vending machines were installed in all BART stations and, to date, BART stations have 
vended more than 1 million Clipper cards. Since December 2017, Clipper usage increased 
from approximately 68% to 85% of all BART trips. 

Staff continues to focus on increasing Clipper usage. Central to this effort is making the 
purchase and use of Clipper cards convenient and easy. A recent evaluation of the District's 
ticket vending configuration determined that the distribution ofTVMs no longer reflects 
customer behavior. While 85% of customers are using Clipper, only 37% ofTVMs dispense 
Clipper cards. Consequently, when customers purchase fare media in a station, it is easier to 
purchase a paper ticket. 



Execution of Change Order to Contract no. 47CJ-120, with Cubic Transportation Systems, Inc. (cont.) 

In an effort to encourage more customers to transition to Clipper, staff recommends 
increasing the number of CVMs dispensing Clipper cards such that 56% of the CVMs 
dispense Clipper cards system-wide. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding in the amount of$687,911 for award of Change Order No. 001 to Contract 47CJ-
120 is included in the total Project budget for FMS #47CJ009 -Clipper Card Dispensing at 
BART Ticket Vending Machines. 

The table below lists funding assigned to the referenced project and is included to track 
funding history against spending authority. Funds needed to meet this request will be 
expended from the following sources: 

Fund Group Amount 

Various FT A Grant Sources $1,680,065 

State Prop IB $ 1,173,544 

BART Operating Allocation to Capital $2,140,016 

TOTAL $4,993,625 

As of 07/ 16/2019, $4,993,625 is the total budget for this project. BART has expended 
$3,342,316, committed $152,549 and reserved $0 to date. This action will commit $687,911 
leaving an available fund balance of $810,849 in these fund sources for this project. 

The Office of the Controller/ Treasurer certifies that funds are currently available to meet this 
obligation. This action is not anticipated to have any Fiscal Impact on un-programmed 
District Reserves. 

ALTERNATIVES: 
Do not authorize the Interim General Manager to execute a Change Order with CTS. The 
District would not adequately be able to offer its customers the convenience of CVMs that 
dispense Clipper(R) cards as we continue to promote the use of Clipper toward 100% 
utilization. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Adopt the following Motion. 

MOTION: 
The Interim General Manager or his designee is authorized to execute Change Order No. 001 
to Contract No. 47CJ-120, Procurement of Clipper Vending Machine Transport Installation 
Kits and Software Modifications to Dispense Clipper(R) Cards, in the amount of $687,911. 



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT 

ATIACHMENT#l 

CHANGE ORDER SUMMARY 

BACKGROUND 

Name of Contractor: Cubic Transportation Systems, Inc 

Contract No./NTP: 47CJ-120/July 20, 2016 

Contract Description: Procurement of Ticket Vending Machine Transport Installation Kits 
with Software Modifications to Dispense Clipper Cards 

Percent Complete as of 
07/16/2019 

Original Contract Award 
Amount: 

Change Orders: 

Other than Board 
Authorized COs: 

Pending Change Order #01 

Subtotal of all Change 
Orders: 

Revised Contract Amount: 

SCHEDULE 

Original Contract Duration: 

Time Extension to Date: 

Time Extension Due to 
Approved COs: 

Revised Contract Duration: 

90% 

% of Award 

22.55% 

22.55% 

20 months 

none 

none 

NTP CO 1 plus 8 
months 

SUMMARY REASON FOR THIS CHANGE ORDER: 

CO Totals 

687,911 

687,911 

Contract Amou_nt 

3,049,995.78 

687,911 

3,737,906.78 

Procure 66 Clipper card transports to encourage more customers to transition to Clipper. 



EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT 

GE~~AGER0 0VAL: \'l ~\)£.\{ ZCIL5' 

~M'\. r~ 
DATE: 6/25/2019 

Originator/Prepared by: Steve Beroldo 

Dept: Systems Development 

GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D: 

BOARD JNITIATED ITEM: No 

Controllerffreas-urer District Secretary 

I l 

Award of Contract 57RR-110: Embarcadero and Civic Center Bike Station 
Modifications 

PURPOSE: 

To obtain the Board's authorization for the General Manager to award Contract No. 57RR-
110: Embarcadero and Civic Center Bike Station Modifications, to Alex Kushner General, 
Inc. , of San Francisco, California, for the Bid price of $573,260. 

DISCUSSION: 

This project is intended to increase usage of the Bike Stations at Embarcadero and Civic 
Center stations by improving visibility, security and safety features of the facilities. 

At the Embarcadero station, this project will reconfigure the entry with a new steel structure 
glass wall and new door separating the secured bike area from the station concourse. The 
work also includes an upgrade of the BikeLink access control system at the entrance, 
installing a new metal grid ceiling and new lighting fixtures. Bike racks will be reconfigured 
to provide parking for oversize bikes and charging for eBikes. 

At the Civic Center station, the project will address misuse and security of the space. The 
project will remove and re-purpose a partition wall between the secured paid bike parking 
area and open parking area and create one continuous secured bicycle parking area. This will 
include the installation of a second door, steel structural members, glass panels and steel rails 
to close the open space on top of the existing wall system. 

The successful completion of the project will provide safe and secure bike parking facilities 
at the two downtown San Francisco BART stations. No Federal funds have been used, 



57RR-l 10--Embarcadero/Civic Center Bike Station 

nor are there plans to use them for the project including the design phase. 

Bid Process 

The District provided an Advance Notice-to-Bidders to 192 prospective bidders on April 
4th, 2019 and Contract Documents were emailed to 24 plan rooms and Minority Assistance 

Organizations. The Contract was advertised on or around April 10th, 2019 in local 
publications. The Contract Documents were posted to the District's Procurement Portal and 

available to Bidders electronically on April 10th and in hard copy form. A total of thirty (30) 
entities downloaded the Contract Documents from the BART Procurement Portal. A pre
bid Meeting and job site walk were conducted on May 2, 2019 with four (4) prospective 
Bidders attending the meeting. No addenda were issued during the bid period. 

Three (3) Bids were received and publicly opened on June 4, 2019. The Bids, including the 
Engineer' s Estimate are as follows: 

Bidder Location Total Base Bid 
KCK Builders San Francisco, CA $418,000 
Alex Kushner General, Inc San Francisco, CA $573,260 
Rockridge Builders Oakland, CA $694,387 
Engineer's Estimate - $690,091 

The apparent low bidder, KCK Builders of San Francisco, requested to withdraw its bid 
because the bid contained a clerical error which resulted in the bid being $100,000 lower than 
the bidder's actual estimate. After comparing KCK Builders' estimate sheet and bid form the 
District consented to this request. 

After review by District staff, the Bid submitted by Alex Kushner General, Inc. was 
determined to be responsive to the solicitation. Examination of Alex Kushner General, Inc's. 
license, business experience, and financial capabilities has resulted in a determination that this 
Bidder is responsible. Staff has also determined that the Total Base Bid Price of $573,260 is 
fair and ,reasonable. 

District staff has determined that this work is categorically exempt from the provisions of the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Title 14, Cali fornia Code of 
Regulations, Section 15301, Existing Facilities, because it consists of minor alterations of 
existing facilities. 

Pursuant to the District' s Non-Discrimination Program for Subcontracting, the Availability 
Percentages for this Contract are 18.2% for Minority Business Enterprises ("NlBEs") and 



57RR-1 l 0--Embarcadero/Civic Center Bike Station 

9.3% for Women Business Enterprises ("WBEs"). The Bidder, Alex Kushner General, Inc., 
committed to 0.0% I\1BE and 0.0% WBE participation. The Bidder, Alex Kushner General, 
Inc., did not meet either the 1v1BE or WBE Availability Percentages; therefore, the Bidder 
Alex Kushner General, Inc. was requested to provide the Office of Civil Rights with 
supporting documentation to determine if it had discriminated on the basis of race, national 
origin, color, gender or ethnicity. Based on the review of the information submitted by the 
Bidder Alex Kushner General, Inc., the Office of Civil Rights found no evidence of 
discrimination. 

Pursuant to the District's Non-Federal Small Business Program, the Office of Civil Rights 
set a 7% Local Small Business Prime Preference for this Contract for Small Businesses 
certified by the California Department of General Services and verified as Local (i.e., located 
in Alameda, Contra Costa or San Francisco counties) by the District. The lowest responsive 
Bidder Alex Kushner General, Inc. is a certified Local Small Business, thus, making it eligible 
for the Prime Preference. Since the Bidder, Alex Kushner General, Inc. is the lowest 
responsive Bidder, and is eligible for the 7% Local Small Business Prime Preference, the · 
application of the Prime Preference will not alter the award to the Bidder, Alex Kushner 
General, Inc. 

FISCAL IMP ACT: 

Funding in the amount of$573,260 for award of Contract No. 57RR-l 10 is included in the 
total project budget for FMS# 57RR205 Embarcadero & Civic Bike Stations Modernization. 

The table below lists funding assigned to the referenced project and is included to track 
funding history against spending authority. Funds needed to meet this request will be 
expended from the following sources: 

Fund No. Source Fund Description Amount 
6624 Local Prop K - Bike Parking and Access $437,100 

Improvements 

802A BART 2017 Measure RR GOB $490,847 

Total $927,947 

As of June 24, 2019, $927,947 is the total budget for this project. BART has expended 
$82,810 and committed $0 and reserved $0 to date. This action will commit $573,260 leaving 
an available fund balance of $271,877 in these fund sources for this project. 

The Office of Controller!Treasurer certifies that funds are currently available to meet this 
obligation. 



57RR-I 10--Embarcadero/Civic Center Bike Station 

This action is not anticipated to have any Fiscal Impact on unprogrammed District reserves. 

ALTERNATIVE: 

The alternative is to decline to award the Contract or rebid. Declining to award the Contract 
would mean delaying or not improving the Bike Station facilities at the two downtown 
stations and not addressing known security and safety issues. Delays associated with 
rebidding the Contract could potentially result in increased Project costs. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the Board adopt the following motion: 

MOTION: 

The General Manager is authorized to award Contract No. 57RR-l l O for Embarcadero and 
Civic Center Bike Station Modifications, to Alex Kushner General Inc., of San Francisco, 
California for the Bid price of $573,260, pursuant to notification to be issued qy the General 
Manager and subject to compliance with the District's protest procedures. 



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Board of Directors DATE: July 18, 2019 

FROM: Interim General Manager 

SUBJECT: Update on Transbay Corridor Core Capacity Project 

At the Board meeting on July 25, 2019, staff will present the attached update on the current status 
of the Trans bay Corridor Core Capacity project. 

If you have any questions, please contact Carl Holmes at (510) 464-7592. 

Attachement 

cc: Board Appointed Officers 
Executive Managers 

Robert M. Powers 





MEASURE RR BOND 


OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE 
ANNUAL REPORT    
JUNE 2019







TABLE OF CONTENTS


Letter from the Chairperson    1
Executive Summary                            2
About Us: Your Bond Oversight 
    Committee     2
Meeting Our Mandate   4
The Story of Measure RR   6
The Path Forward                          8
Reinvestment Revitalization   9 
Small Business Outreach            10
Putting People to Work  11
Investment Summary             12
Exceeding Bond Requiremnets        13
Major Projects Funded by 
    Measure RR              14


Renew Track               14
Renew Power Infrastructure             16
Repair Tunnels and Structures          18
Renew Mechanical Infrastructure     20 
Renew Stations             22
Renovate and Replace Escalators       22
Train Control Modernization             24
Design and Engineer 
Design and Engineer Projects to
    Relieve Crowding, 
    Increase Redundancy and 
    Reduce Traffic Congestion          26
Access Improvements                      28







Dear Bay Area residents:


Thank you for your interest in the on-going 
efforts to rebuild BART. Voters in Alameda, 
Contra Costa, and San Francisco counties put 
their trust in BART when they approved Measure 
RR in November 2016. That measure authorizes 
BART to issue $3.5 billion in bonds to fund 
critical infrastructure projects necessary to 
rebuild the transit system, so it can be reliable 
for the public for decades to come.


This annual report is meant to update you on how that money is 
being spent and the progress being made in rebuilding BART. As the 
chairperson of the Bond Oversight Committee, I encourage you to read 
this report and keep updated on the progress of the long-term projects 
being funded by Measure RR. The committee includes members with 
extensive experience in finance, engineering, and project management.  
It’s our job as a committee to ensure that Measure RR funds are being 
spent in an appropriate manner.


I hope you’ll join us at one of the committee’s public meetings and offer 
us your thoughts. Our meetings are open to the public and are listed 
on our website at www.bart.gov/about/bod/advisory/bond. We will 
continue to publish annual reports throughout the lifetime of RR.


Sincerely,


 


Michael R. McGill


RR Bond Oversight Committee Chairperson


Professional Engineer, Institute of Electrical and Electronic Engineers (IEEE) seat


OTHER COMMITTEE MEMBERS
Full biographies and photographs at www.bart.gov


JOHN POST, Project Management Seat (Vice Chairperson)


MARIAN BREITBART, Budgeting & Financial Management Seat


MICHAEL DAY, Accounting Seat


DAREN GEE, Civil Engineering Seat


CATHERINE NEWMAN, League of Women Voters Seat


LEAH EDWARDS, League of Women Voters Seat


MEASURE RR BOND COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT  |  2019       1


If you need language assistance services, please call (510) 464-6752. 


Si necesita servicios de asistencia de idiomas, llame al (510) 464-6752.


如需語言協助服務，請致電 (510) 464-6752。
통역이 필요하신 분은, 510-464-6752 로 문의하십시오.
Kung kailangan mo ang tulong ng mga serbisyo ng wika, paki tawagan ang (510) 464-6752.


Nếu quý vị cần dịch vụ trợ giúp về ngôn ngữ, xin vui lòng gọi số (510) 464-6752.







2


In January 2017, BART initiated the Measure RR program, acting on the public’s vote to invest 
$3.5 billion to rebuild its infrastructure. Through March 2019, $218.3 million or 6% of Measure RR 
funds have been invested in projects to improve system safety, increase reliability, and relieve 
traffic congestion. To ensure the public’s money is protected and spent wisely, the Bond Oversight 
Committee regularly evaluates the program and reports to the public. The committee believes the 
current pace of spending shows that BART is meeting bond expenditure requirements and the 
scope of work completed is ahead of projections. This report provides a comprehensive update 
on the status of Measure RR as it begins its third year of implementation.  Included in the report 
are details describing how the $3.5 billion Measure RR program contributes to BART’s overall 
reinvestment needs. A summary of investments and status reports for each of the program 
categories is provided. 


As BART continues planning and design work on more than 50 projects, an additional 32 projects 
are either under construction or complete. These projects include the rebuilding and replacing 
of tracks, upgrades to the traction power and electrical systems, critical safety improvements to 
tunnels, aerial structures, and facilities, upgrades to the mechanical systems supporting the train 
yards and maintenance facilities, station upgrades to improve safety, reliability, and passenger 
access, and system modifications to relieve crowding. These improvements to BART’s infrastructure 
reduce safety risks and improve the passenger experience.


The Bond Oversight Committee’s task is to provide consistent oversight of RR spending to ensure
projects are cost-effective, meet quality standards, and are completed in a timely manner. For more 
details about Measure RR projects and how they will improve system safety, increase reliability, and 
relieve congestion, please visit the Better BART website (www.bart.gov/betterbart).


EXECUTIVE SUMMARY


The Bond Oversight Committee (BOC) is comprised of seven members who represent a diversity 
of expertise, geography, and demographic characteristics. Measure RR required BART to establish 
this independent committee to verify that bond revenues are being spent as promised.  Members 
serve two-year terms and are eligible to serve up to six years total. They are appointed by the 


BART Board of Directors as follows:


•  The American Society of Civil Engineers, or its successor organization, is represented by one 
member who has expertise in civil engineering management and oversight.


•  The Institute of Electrical and Electronic Engineers (IEEE), or its successor organization, is 
represented by one member who has expertise in electrical engineering management and 
oversight.


•  The American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, or its successor organization, is 
represented by one member who has expertise in audit or financial oversight.


•  The Association for Budgeting & Financial Management section of the American Society for 
Public Administration, or its successor organization, is represented by one member who has 
expertise in municipal finance.


ABOUT THE BOND OVERSIGHT 
COMMITTEE







MEASURE RR BOND OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT  |  2019       3


•  The Project Management Institute, or its successor organization, is represented by one member 
who has expertise in construction project management.


•  The League of Women Voters, Bay Area, or its successor organization or chapter is represented 
by two members.


The duties and responsibilities of the BOC are to:


•  Provide diligent, independent, and public oversight over the expenditure of funds from the sale of 


District general obligation bonds.


•  Assess how bond proceeds are spent to ensure that all spending is authorized by the ballot 
measure.


•  Assess whether projects funded by bond proceeds are completed in a timely, cost-effective, and 
quality manner consistent with the best interests of BART riders and District residents.


•  Publish an annual report that includes a detailed account of the committee’s activities including 
its expenditures.


The full text of the duties and responsibilities of the BOC are found in Section 11 of the resolution 
that established the BOC, available in full at www.bart.gov.


All members of the BOC were reappointed to the panel by the BART Board in April of 2019. The 
terms of all committee members expire June 30, 2021.


Back row, left to right: Daren Gee, John Post, Michael Day, Michael R. McGill; front row, left to right: Marian Breitbart, 
Catherine Newman, Leah Edwards







4


MEETING OUR MANDATE 


SPENDING LEGALLY: This committee must ensure that all Measure RR bond funds are expended 
towards the improvement of real property. This responsibility is in alignment with the California 
Constitution. RR funds can be legally spent to support project expenses in the following categories: 
preventing accidents, breakdowns, and delays; relieving overcrowding; reducing traffic congestion 
and pollution; improving earthquake safety; improving access for seniors and disabled persons; 
and replacing worn tracks, damaged tunnels, old train control systems, and other deteriorating 
infrastructure.


MONITORING IMPACTS: The committee is responsible for keeping the public informed about 
construction work that impacts travel on BART. The following details past, current, and future impacts:


•  In calendar 2018, there were five weekends of scheduled interruptions for track replacement 
construction between Concord and Pleasant Hill stations and 19th St. and West Oakland stations.  To 
mitigate service impacts, a bus bridge was implemented to move passengers between these stations.  


•  On February 11, 2019, BART moved the start of its weekday service one hour later (from 4 am to  
5 am) to provide construction crews time to seismically retrofit the Transbay Tube. To accommodate 
the approximately 2,900 daily riders impacted by the schedule change, the Early Bird Express bus 
service has been implemented to connect passengers to downtown Oakland and San Francisco. 


•  BART trains are currently running on a single track on select Sundays in the San Francisco subway 
while construction crews upgrade critical power cables and lighting. The single tracking results in 
10-minute delays to service. 


•  Additional track replacement construction happened between the Concord and Pleasant Hill/Contra 
Costa Centre stations. This work impacted four weekends between April and June of 2019. A bus 
bridge was implemented during these track shutdowns to move riders between the two impacted 
stations.


•  Track replacement construction work will occur between Lafayette and Walnut Creek stations. This 
work will impact six weekends between July and October of 2019. A bus bridge will be implemented 
during these shutdowns.


ENSURING QUALITY AND SUSTAINABILITY: The Committee is charged with ensuring projects 
are progressing in accordance with the District’s quality and sustainability standards. Measure RR 
programs are committed to advancing sustainability. One example is the Tunnel Lighting program 
that replaces old fluorescent lighting with more energy efficient LEDs. In addition to energy savings, 
the LEDs have a life expectancy that is more than six years longer than fluorescent lighting, resulting 
in a reduced waste stream and elimination of hazardous waste associated with fluorescents.  
Employee safety is also improved due to increased lighting on the tunnel walkways and reduced 
maintenance requirements associated with replacing expended lights.


OVERSEEING PROJECT REPORTING STANDARDS: BART utilizes program and project reporting
that is aligned with industry standard project lifecycle framework. The current framework is
decentralized and every project goes through multilevel approval gates including compliance and
financial reviews. Projects are also reviewed quarterly by next-level management for deviations
in scope, budget, or schedule. The BART team is committed to continuous improvement and is
developing a customized RR reporting framework. This approach will enhance the team’s ability to
provide clear evidence of predetermined measurement of progress as well as the actual progress


performance.


 







MEASURE RR BOND OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT  |  2019       5MEASURE RR BOND OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT  |  2019       5







6


Measure RR traces its origin back to more than 315 community 
meetings BART held with local stakeholders and civic groups.  
Those meetings before the 2016 vote focused on explaining 
BART’s critical infrastructure needs. BART faced a challenge:  
much of the system needed to be rebuilt but there wasn’t enough 
money to get the job done. BART estimated that if action wasn’t 
taken nearly half of the system’s assets (including train control 
systems, tracks, and power cables) would be at the end of their 
useful life within only ten years. 
 
In response to this information, the elected BART Board of 
Directors voted unanimously to put a $3.5 billion general 
obligation bond on the November 2016 ballot.


The public responded to the call for action, with nearly 70% of 
voters in the BART District (Alameda, Contra Costa, and San 
Francisco counties) approving Measure RR.


The bond is devoted solely to rebuilding BART’s infrastructure 
without any earmarks, pet projects, or frills. Many of the 
infrastructure components now being addressed by Measure RR 
date back to the start of BART service in 1972. The measure also 
includes important checks and balances to ensure the public’s 
money is protected and spent wisely. This Bond Oversight 
Committee examines spending and reports to the public.


Complete details of what is in the bond and how it relates to 
safety, reliability, and relief of traffic congestion can be found at 


the Measure RR website, bart.gov/betterbart.


THE STORY OF MEASURE RR: 


       Leslie Forman
           @leslieforman


Nice job @SFBART! way to keep everyone moving during 


construction. Bus bridge from West Oakland to 19th St. was 


super quick and the next train to Dublin/PLS was right there. 


Thank you for making visbly good use of bond $$$.


7:13 PM - 4 AUG 2018


 


       Mitchell Handler
           @mitchellhandler


So glad Bay Area voters passed measure RR and RM3 to 


support @SFBART to prevent maintenance issues from 


becoming this bad


5:09 PM - 25 JUNE 2018


 


Follow


Follow







MEASURE RR BOND OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT  |  2019       7MEASURE RR BOND OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT  |  2019       7







8


GREEN BONDS


BART is poised to issue the second tranche of bonds for Measure RR to ensure continued timely 
financing for infrastructure projects. BART will issue $360 million in certified climate-friendly green 
bonds in the summer of 2019.


When BART issued its first bond tranche for RR in the amount of $300 million in June 2017 it 
became one of the first municipal bond issuers in the nation to provide priority status to investors 
who focus on lending to projects with environmental, social, and governance (ESG) characteristics.  
But BART wasn’t satisfied to simply label its bonds “green.” Instead, BART obtained a bond 
certification through the Climate Bonds Initiative’s Low Carbon Transport Standard. That made 
BART the first transit agency on the West Coast to earn such a certification.


“Issuing certified green bonds not only fits with our long-term sustainability goals but it has allowed 
us to broaden our investor base,” said BART’s Controller-Treasurer Rose Poblete. “Our green bonds 
proved to be especially popular with individual investors in the Bay Area,” said Poblete. The starting 
threshold for investing in Measure RR bonds is $5,000.


During a negotiated bond sale, investors are invited to place orders for their desired amount of 
bonds being offered. Often, issuers like BART will set different priority levels for different types 
of investors. Most commonly, an issuer may give priority in certain maturities to retail investors to 
ensure the bonds are not purchased solely by large institutional investors.


As part of the initial bond sale in 2017, BART offered certain maturities with a preference for retail 
investors residing in the three counties of the BART District. Those investors provided 64% of the 
more than 450 orders totaling $378 million during the retail order period. The following day, BART 
sold the remaining maturities to institutional and retail investors who prioritize an ESG focus. This 
innovation in the municipal bond market enhanced the visibility of BART’s deal with ESG funds 
as well as with related non-ESG funds. Ultimately, bonds purchased by one ESG investor received 
preference over the $1.3 billion in institutional orders, and the resulting true interest cost was 140 
basis points below BART’s 2016 projections, saving taxpayers millions of dollars.


Issuing green bonds is consistent with BART’s long-term commitment to sustainability. In 2010 the 
U.S. Transportation Department named BART as the nation’s cleanest major transit system in its 
class, emitting fewer pounds of CO2 per passenger mile than any other similar-sized system.


“







MEASURE RR BOND OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT  |  2019       9MEASURE RR BOND OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT  |  2019       9


Measure RR is allowing BART to take on critical 
infrastructure projects that have a direct impact 
on the travel experience of riders. The second 
year of RR-funded work has included progress 
on a variety of projects that range from 
improving the reliability of the power supplied 
to trains to lowering the volume of the infamous 
BART screech.


Here are just some of the latest Measure RR 
activity highlights:


•  Replaced 27 miles of track to improve overall 
reliability. 


•  Replaced six miles of planned 100 miles of 
34.5 kV electrical cable system. 


•  $96.5 million contract awarded to replace 
more than 40 aging escalators in downtown 
San Francisco.


•  Began study of a second Transbay Rail 
Crossing that would aim to double BART’s 
transbay capacity. 


REINVESTMENT REVITALIZATION
•  Commenced work on Systemwide Coverboard 


Replacement and Systemwide Contact Rail 
Replacement programs. 


•  Completed platform edge rehabilitation work 
on both platforms at MacArthur Station and 
the platform at Rockridge Station. 


•  Construction underway on El Cerrito del 
Norte – Ohlone Greenway and Intermodal 
improvements as well as West Side Pedestrian 
Bridge at Warm Springs/South Fremont 
Station. 


•  Received bidder proposals to upgrade the 
current train control system.


•  Committed $111.8 million in funding to small 
businesses since Measure RR inception.


These accomplishments are just the beginning.  
This report will give you a look into each of the 
major Measure RR-funded projects planned 
through FY20. The work is happening across the 
BART system and demonstrates the agency’s 
commitment to rebuilding and reinvestment.


A LOT OF HARD WORK HAS ALLOWED US TO MAKE PROGRESS ON 


THE BACKLOG OF STATE-OF-GOOD REPAIR NEEDS AT BART. THERE ARE 


MANY CHALLENGES AHEAD, BUT MEASURE RR-FUNDED PROJECTS WILL 


ALLOW US TO REBUILD THE BACKBONE OF BART AND PROVIDE A MORE 


RELIABLE SYSTEM FOR DECADES TO COME.
Grace Crunican, BART General Manager


“ “







10


BART has made it a priority to reach out to small businesses in the Bay Area to encourage them to 
compete for work on Measure RR projects. BART has set up an equity program through its Office 
of Civil Rights to ensure that primary contractors don’t discriminate when subcontracting out work. 
BART has a program that provides bid preferences for qualified small businesses. This includes 
certified minority-owned, woman-owned, locally-owned, and LGBT-owned companies.


To promote opportunities to bid on RR projects, BART has held 67 meetings across the BART 
system including 16 through March of this year. Those outreach efforts are paying off as 366 RR-
related contracts have been granted to small businesses. That translates to $111.8 million in RR 
commitments to small businesses that are helping to rebuild BART. Small businesses account for 
34% of all RR commitments. Those companies are involved in all facets of rebuilding work including 
renewing track and power infrastructure as well as renewing stations and repairing tunnels. 
 
One of the small businesses that’s 
earned a contract to do RR work is 
McKee and Company Electric of San 
Francisco. “We’re really excited to be 
able to work with BART, to grow our 
business, and to keep jobs in the local 
community,” said company CEO Steve 
McKee. His 14-man shop was recently 
awarded part of a contract to replace 
emergency lighting in BART tunnels 
underneath San Francisco.  


McKee and Company will replace old 
fluorescent lights that are 50 feet apart 
with new, much brighter LED lights that 
are only 25 feet apart. “My kids take 
public transportation,” he said. “We 
want to keep the system safe. There’s 
also an element of pride to be able to 
tell them Dad is going to be working on 
a job for BART.”


SMALL BUSINESS OUTREACH


We’re really excited to be able to work 
with BART, to grow our business, and to 


keep jobs in the local community. 
 Steve McKee, CEO 


 McKee and Company Electric of San Francisco


“ “







MEASURE RR BOND OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT  |  2019       11MEASURE RR BOND OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT  |  2019       11


The nearly three dozen RR-funded projects that have either been completed or are under 
construction would not be possible without the efforts of hardworking employees and contractors.  
RR has allowed BART to create hundreds of positions, providing a boost to local hiring and the 
region’s economy. Over the last 12 months RR has been used to create more than 400 full-time 
jobs. Additionally, more than 200 consulting positions and 200 contractor openings have been 
created through RR funding. These employees and contractors are now working on RR projects 
across the Bay Area.


The workers take a great deal of pride in their efforts, knowing the impact of these rebuilding 
projects will last for decades. “It is very surprising that this train system is over 40 years old. It’s still 
here and it’s still working but it’s not working the way it should be,” said track foreworker Jaime 
Ramirez. He was part of the team that rebuilt the trackway between the Pleasant Hill/Contra Costa 
Centre and Concord stations. “Once it’s all rebuilt, once it’s all redone it will last another 40-50 
years,” said Ramirez. 


“We are rebuilding and remodifying and repairing our core system so that it lasts,” said Herb 
Holland, a Section Manager of Track Maintenance who was part of the team that rebuilt the 
trackway between the 19th Street and West Oakland stations. Holland says the work he was a part 
of will result in rides that are safer, smoother, and more reliable.


PUTTING PEOPLE TO WORK







12


INVESTMENT SUMMARY
This is only the second fiscal year for Measure RR but even at this early stage projects are getting 
underway across the BART system. Much of the early investments from RR have been devoted 
to engineering. As that planning and design work moves forward, more projects will enter the 


construction phase. The chart below provides an overview of the overall investment plan for RR.


Benefits


% of 
Total 
Bond Safety Reliability


Crowding 
+Traffic Relief


REPAIR AND REPLACE 
CRITICAL SAFETY 
INFRASTRUCTURE


$3,165 90% 3 3 3


Renew track $625 18% 3 3
Renew power infrastructure $1,225 35% 3 3
Repair tunnels and structures $570 16% 3 3
Renew mechanical infrastructure $135 4% 3 3
Renew stations $210 6% 3 3 3
Replace train control and other 
major system infrastructure to 
increase peak period capacity


$400 12% 3 3 3


RELIEVE CROWDING, REDUCE 
TRAFFIC CONGESTION AND 
EXPAND OPPORTUNITIES TO 
SAFELY ACCESS STATIONS


$335 10% 3 3 3


Design and engineer future  
projects to relieve crowding,  
increase system redundancy 
and reduce traffic congestion


$200 6% 3 3


Expand opportunities to safely 
access stations


$135 4% 3 3 3
TOTAL $3,500 100%


Summary of 
Total RR Bond 
Investments


Investment
Amount in 


Millions







MEASURE RR BOND OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT  |  2019       13


EXCEEDING BOND REQUIREMENTS
Money for Measure RR is raised from property taxes assessed in Alameda, Contra Costa, and San 
Francisco counties. Those counties make up the BART District and are three of the five counties 
served by BART. The money from those property taxes allows BART to issue bonds that work like a 
bank loan. Investors loan money to BART so it can invest in rebuilding the system. BART must then 
pay the investors back with interest on the amount borrowed.


IRS rules require that at the time of issuance the BART District needs to have a reasonable 
expectation that 85% of the bond proceeds, including interest earnings on the proceeds, will 
be spent within three years. BART has progressed on RR projects at a pace that exceeds this 
requirement, which reflects on the District’s success in delivering RR-funded work in a timely 
manner.


RR Program  
Overview of  
1st Tranche
Expenditures ($ Millions)


1st Tranche 
Spending 


Objective
(Through  


June 2020)


Expended
(Through 


March 2019)


% Expended 
Out of  


1st Tranche


Purchase Orders 
To Date Yet To 


Be Invoiced


Forecast  
Expenditures 


Through  
June 2020


Renew track $93.2 $87.0 93% $30.0 $136


Renew power infrastructure $120.6 $84.4 70% $52.0 $182


Repair tunnels and structures $22.5 $19.1 85% $4.8 $57


Renew mechanical $7.5 $6.3 85% $4.8 $21


Renew stations $9.1 $3.3 36% $8.4 $15


Replace train control/ 
increase capacity


$19.8 $6.2 31% $7.1 $21


Design/engineer to relieve 
crowding


$12.5 $5.9 47% $10.0 $22


Expand safe access to stations $14.8 $6.1 41% $5.7 $20


TOTAL $300 $218.3 73% $122.8 $474


6/2
01


7 


7/2
01


7 


8/2
01


7 


9/2
01


7 


10
/20


17
 


11
/20


17
 


12
/20


17
 


1/2
01


8 


2/2
01


8 


3/2
01


8 


4/2
01


8 


5/2
01


8 


6/2
01


8 


7/2
01


8 


8/2
01


8 


9/2
01


8 


10
/20


18
 


11
/20


18
 


12
/20


18
 


2/2
01


9 


3/2
01


9 


4/2
01


9 


5/2
01


9 


6/2
01


9 


7/2
01


9 


8/2
01


9 


9/2
01


9 


10
/20


19
 


11
/20


19
 


12
/20


19
 


1/2
02


0


2/2
02


0


3/2
02


0


4/2
02


0


5/2
02


0


6/2
02


0


1/2
01


9 


Month/Calendar Year


BART Measure RR Program—FIRST TRANCHE ($300M Spending Objective 6/2017–6/2020
Baseline vs. Actual Cash Flow (Cumulative)


Minimum spending required to meet legal requirement                 Scope of work complete                Forecast


*Requirement to spend $300M by June 2020


Ca
sh


flo
w


 —
Cu


m
ul


at
iv


e 
(m


ill
io


ns
)


$300
12/2019


$125.4


$218.3


$250*


$200


$150


$100


  $50


    $0


(Baseline) (Actual Cash Flow, Cumulative)







14


Renew Track
Through March of this year BART has replaced 27 miles of a planned 90 miles of track systemwide.  
Recently, aging track equipment and worn rail have been replaced near the 12th Street and West 
Oakland stations in Alameda County as well as the Pleasant Hill/Contra Costa Centre and Concord 
stations in Contra Costa County. Work to replace rail interlockings at the Concord Yard and near 
Lafayette Station will begin later this year. This work is essential to improving the reliability of the 
BART system.


In addition to replacing worn rail, RR money has been used by BART to reprofile 111 miles of track 
to reduce noise. BART has adopted a quieter wheel design to make the most of the reprofiled rail.  
Testing has shown a drop of as many as 20 decibels in sound intensity.  


$87 million has been invested in RR track renewal projects through March 2019 with a total 
investment objective of $93.2 million by June 2020.


MAJOR PROJECTS FUNDED BY MEASURE RR 


Before and after.


ANTIOCH
PITTSBURG 


CENTERPITTSBURG/ 
BAY POINT


NORTH CONCORD/
MARTINEZ


CONCORD


PLEASANT HILL / CONTRA COSTA CENTRE


WALNUT CREEK


LAFAYETTE


ORINDA


ROCKRIDGE


MACARTHUR


19TH ST/OAKLAND


12TH ST/OAKLAND CITY CENTER


LAKE MERRITT


FRUITVALE


COLISEUM


SAN LEANDRO


BAY FAIR
CASTRO VALLEY


WEST DUBLIN/
PLEASANTON


DUBLIN/
PLEASANTON


OAKLAND 
INTERNATIONAL 
AIRPORT (OAK)


HAYWARD


SOUTH HAYWARD


UNION CITY


FREMONT


WARM SPRINGS / SOUTH FREMONT


RICHMOND


EL CERRITO PLAZA


NORTH BERKELEY


DOWNTOWN BERKELEY


ASHBY


WEST OAKLAND


EMBARCADERO


MONTGOMERY ST


POWELL ST


CIVIC CENTER / UN PLAZA


16TH ST MISSION


24TH ST MISSION


GLEN PARK


BALBOA PARK


DALY CITY


COLMA


SOUTH SAN 
FRANCISCO SAN 


BRUNO


MILLBRAE


SAN FRANCISCO 
INTERNATIONAL 
AIRPORT (SFO)


EL CERRITO DEL NORTE


Measure RR - RENEW TRACK Projects
Active Projects Completed or Under Construction


Status as of 5/17/2019


Direct Fixation Pads Replacement - SYSTEMWIDE
M03 Interlocking Replacement
C55 Interlocking Replacement
C35 Interlocking Replacement
A15 Interlocking Replacement
Track Restraining Rail Replacement


Below shows how West Oakland trackway 
looked before it was renovated through 
RR-funded work. To the right is how that 
same section of trackway looks after being 
completely rebuilt over four weekends. That 
weekend track work allowed BART to replace 
rail, install new third rail and coverboards, 
replace wood ties, and more.  







MEASURE RR BOND OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT  |  2019       15MEASURE RR BOND OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT  |  2019       15


ReliabilitySafety


$625
Million


18%
of Bond







16


Renew Power Infrastructure 
BART’s traction power system relies on conduits, cables, and substations. The conduits house 
34.5 kV cables that deliver power to the substations. BART has more than 60 power substations. 
All these systems work together so power can be properly stepped down and fed into the 1,000-
volt electrified third rail. The third rail is what provides power to the train cars via conductive 
metal collector shoes that contact the third rail. 


BART is renovating its power infrastructure to improve the reliability of electricity delivery to 
the trains and passenger stations. In addition to improving reliability, the power infrastructure 
upgrades will improve electrical efficiency, enabling BART to deliver on the vision of its 
sustainability goals.  


As of the end of March 2019, there are two 34.5 kV electrical cable replacement projects in the 
construction phase and three that are in the design phase. Six miles of a planned 100 miles of 
34.5 kV cable have also been replaced. These replacements have been completed between the 


Washington Street and 19th Avenue substations 
in Oakland and between the 24th Street and 
Glen Park substations in San Francisco.  


Construction this year will be focused on 
replacing the remaining 34.5 kV cable between 
the Balboa Park and Transbay Tube West 
substations in San Francisco and between 
the Transbay Tube East, Washington Street, 
and 23rd Street substations in Oakland.  
Construction to renew electrical systems will 
continue this year with the replacement of 
lighting in the San Francisco tunnel.


BART is also moving forward with plans to 
replace power substations. The substation 
replacement project is now underway at the 
San Leandro Station. Two new substations are 
being designed for installation in downtown 
San Francisco to support capacity expansion 
that will come with new train cars and 
implementation of a new train control system.  
These improvements will help BART reach its 
goal to increase peak capacity by 30% through 
the Transbay Tube.


$84.4 million dollars has been invested in RR 
power-infrastructure projects through March 
2019 with a total investment objective of $120.6 
million by June 2020.


MAJOR PROJECTS FUNDED BY MEASURE RR 


Measure RR - RENEW POWER Projects
Active Projects Completed or Under Construction


Status as of 5/17/2019


MPR Installation & Rectifier Rehabilitation - SYSTEMWIDE
M-Line 34.5 kV Cable Replacement
K-Line 34.5 kV Cable Replacement
Substation Replacement/Installation
Richmond Yard Substation DC House Replacement
Transbay Tube Emergency Generator 
Tunnel Lighting Replacement


ANTIOCH
PITTSBURG 


CENTERPITTSBURG/ 
BAY POINT


NORTH CONCORD/
MARTINEZ


CONCORD


PLEASANT HILL / CONTRA COSTA CENTRE


WALNUT CREEK


LAFAYETTE


ORINDA


ROCKRIDGE


MACARTHUR


19TH ST/OAKLAND


12TH ST/OAKLAND CITY CENTER


LAKE MERRITT


FRUITVALE


COLISEUM


SAN LEANDRO


BAY FAIR
CASTRO VALLEY


WEST DUBLIN/
PLEASANTON


DUBLIN/
PLEASANTON


OAKLAND 
INTERNATIONAL 
AIRPORT (OAK)


HAYWARD


SOUTH HAYWARD


UNION CITY


FREMONT


WARM SPRINGS / SOUTH FREMONT


RICHMOND


EL CERRITO PLAZA


NORTH BERKELEY


DOWNTOWN BERKELEY


ASHBY


WEST OAKLAND


EMBARCADERO


MONTGOMERY ST


POWELL ST


CIVIC CENTER / UN PLAZA


16TH ST MISSION


24TH ST MISSION


GLEN PARK


BALBOA PARK


DALY CITY


COLMA


SOUTH SAN 
FRANCISCO SAN 


BRUNO


MILLBRAE


SAN FRANCISCO 
INTERNATIONAL 
AIRPORT (SFO)


EL CERRITO DEL NORTE







MEASURE RR BOND OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT  |  2019       17


ReliabilitySafety


$1,225
Million


35%
of Bond


Heavy lifting at the San Leandro Station where workers 
removed two more than 40-year-old traction power 
transformers. The unit seen here weighs more than 
20,000 pounds. San Leandro is the first station to get 
a new power substation funded by Measure RR.  
Those substations provide the power needed 
to keep BART trains moving.


Much of our cable replacement work is 
done during the overnight hours when 
BART isn’t in service. The work shown here 
happened between the Lake Merritt and 
Fruitvale stations in Oakland.







Repair Tunnels and Structures
Measure RR-funded work to repair tunnels and structures helps drive BART’s mission to provide 
safe and reliable public transportation for the Bay Area. The highest priority for upgrades has 
been the Transbay Tube. The tube is structurally sound, but we are preparing for a rare earthquake 
defined as a 1,000-year event.


Significant work is already complete including installing flexible seismic joints and structural 
upgrades to portions of the tube. The next phase began in February of this year with a retrofit that 
will install an inner steel lining on key sections of the 3.6-mile-long tube. An upgraded pumping 
system will also be installed. To accommodate this work, BART moved the start of revenue service 
back an hour to 5 am and is requiring single tracking through the tube after 9 pm. Opening an hour 
later extends the available work window by at least 20% and gives crews across the system more 
wrench time to rebuild the system.


BART is also strengthening other key portions 
of the system:
•  The Platform Edge Rehabilitation Project 


began in October 2018. Work has been 
completed on both platforms at MacArthur 
Station and the platform at Rockridge 
Station.


•  The Substation Exterior Walls Rehabilitation 
Project started in November 2018. Work 
has been completed at the Portola Drive 
substation in El Cerrito as well as at the 
Richmond, South Hayward, and El Cerrito del 
Norte passenger stations.


•  Renewal of sound walls construction north 
of Concord Station is complete and work 
on aerial structure approaches to both 
north and south transition structures of the 
Berkeley subway is wrapping up and will be 
completed in 2019.


•  Work to replace safety barriers and to install 
aerial fall protection systemwide begins this 
year.


$19.1 million has been invested in RR tunnel 
and structure repair projects through March 
2019 with a total investment objective of $22.5 
million by June 2020.


 


MAJOR PROJECTS FUNDED BY MEASURE RR 


18


ANTIOCH
PITTSBURG 


CENTERPITTSBURG/ 
BAY POINT


NORTH CONCORD/
MARTINEZ


CONCORD


PLEASANT HILL / CONTRA COSTA CENTRE


WALNUT CREEK


LAFAYETTE


ORINDA


ROCKRIDGE


MACARTHUR


19TH ST/OAKLAND


12TH ST/OAKLAND CITY CENTER


LAKE MERRITT


FRUITVALE


COLISEUM


SAN LEANDRO


BAY FAIR
CASTRO VALLEY


WEST DUBLIN/
PLEASANTON


DUBLIN/
PLEASANTON


OAKLAND 
INTERNATIONAL 
AIRPORT (OAK)


HAYWARD


SOUTH HAYWARD


UNION CITY


FREMONT


WARM SPRINGS / SOUTH FREMONT


RICHMOND


EL CERRITO PLAZA


NORTH BERKELEY


DOWNTOWN BERKELEY


ASHBY


WEST OAKLAND


EMBARCADERO


MONTGOMERY ST


POWELL ST


CIVIC CENTER / UN PLAZA


16TH ST MISSION


24TH ST MISSION


GLEN PARK


BALBOA PARK


DALY CITY


COLMA


SOUTH SAN 
FRANCISCO SAN 


BRUNO


MILLBRAE


SAN FRANCISCO 
INTERNATIONAL 
AIRPORT (SFO)


EL CERRITO DEL NORTE


Measure RR - TUNNELS & STRUCTURES Projects
Active Projects Completed or Under Construction


Status as of 5/17/2019


Wayside Regulatory Signage - SYSTEMWIDE
Platform Edge Structure Rehab - SYSTEMWIDE
Substation Roofs - SYSTEMWIDE
Substation Walls - SYSTEMWIDE
Renew Soundwalls Guideway
Replace Transbay Tube Cross Passage Doors
Transbay Tube Earthquake Retrofit


A locomotive work train has been designed for the Transbay Tube retrofit. It includes three new RELCO clean diesel 
locomotives with 14 flat cars that are each configured for a specific task. It will travel through Lake Merritt and stop at 
West Oakland to pick up work crews before heading into the tube.







MEASURE RR BOND OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT  |  2019       19MEASURE RR BOND OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT  |  2019       19


ReliabilitySafety


$570
Million


16%
of Bond







20


Renew Mechanical Infrastructure
Some of the most critical pieces of equipment that keep people safe on BART are never seen 
by the public. Some examples include waste water collection facilities, fire services in the train 
maintenance yards, and HVAC systems. Many of these systems need to be improved to increase 
reliability and meet future performance standards.


The Coverboard Enhancement project on the Dublin/Pleasanton and Concord lines, and the 
Contact Rail Replacement project on the Fremont line both entered the construction phase this 
year. Also commencing this year is work to upgrade the fire services and dust collectors in BART’s 
train yards.


$6.3 million has been invested in RR mechanical infrastructure projects through March 2019 with a 
total investment objective of $7.5 million by June 2020.


MAJOR PROJECTS FUNDED BY MEASURE RR 


ANTIOCH
PITTSBURG 


CENTERPITTSBURG/ 
BAY POINT


NORTH CONCORD/
MARTINEZ


CONCORD


PLEASANT HILL / 
CONTRA COSTA CENTRE


WALNUT CREEK


LAFAYETTE


ORINDA


ROCKRIDGE


MACARTHUR


19TH ST/OAKLAND


12TH ST/OAKLAND CITY CENTER


LAKE MERRITT


FRUITVALE


COLISEUM


SAN LEANDRO


BAY FAIR


CASTRO 
VALLEY


WEST DUBLIN/
PLEASANTON


DUBLIN/
PLEASANTON


OAKLAND 
INTERNATIONAL 
AIRPORT (OAK)


HAYWARD


SOUTH HAYWARD


UNION CITY


FREMONT


WARM SPRINGS / SOUTH FREMONT


RICHMOND


EL CERRITO PLAZA


NORTH BERKELEY


DOWNTOWN BERKELEY


ASHBY


WEST OAKLAND


EMBARCADERO


MONTGOMERY ST


POWELL ST


CIVIC CENTER / UN PLAZA


16TH ST MISSION


24TH ST MISSION


GLEN PARK


BALBOA PARK


DALY CITY


COLMA


SOUTH SAN 
FRANCISCO SAN 


BRUNO


MILLBRAE


SAN FRANCISCO 
INTERNATIONAL 
AIRPORT (SFO)


EL CERRITO DEL NORTE


Measure RR - RENEW MECHANICAL Projects
Active Projects Completed or Under Construction


Status as of 5/17/2019


Coverboard Enhancement







ReliabilitySafety


$135
Million


4%
of Bond


The Coverboard Enhancement project 
aims to upgrade and replace coverboards 
like the one shown above. Coverboards 
protect the electrified third rail, which 
provides power to all our trains.


MEASURE RR BOND OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT  |  2019       21







MAJOR PROJECTS FUNDED BY MEASURE RR 


ANTIOCH
PITTSBURG 


CENTERPITTSBURG/ 
BAY POINT


NORTH CONCORD/
MARTINEZ


CONCORD


PLEASANT HILL / CONTRA COSTA CENTRE


WALNUT CREEK


LAFAYETTE


ORINDA


ROCKRIDGE


MACARTHUR


19TH ST/OAKLAND


12TH ST/OAKLAND CITY CENTER


LAKE MERRITT


FRUITVALE


COLISEUM


SAN LEANDRO


BAY FAIR
CASTRO VALLEY


WEST DUBLIN/
PLEASANTON


DUBLIN/
PLEASANTON


OAKLAND 
INTERNATIONAL 
AIRPORT (OAK)


HAYWARD


SOUTH HAYWARD


UNION CITY


FREMONT


WARM SPRINGS / SOUTH FREMONT


RICHMOND


EL CERRITO DEL NORTE


EL CERRITO PLAZA


NORTH BERKELEY


DOWNTOWN BERKELEY


ASHBY


WEST OAKLAND


EMBARCADERO


MONTGOMERY ST


POWELL ST


CIVIC CENTER / UN PLAZA


16TH ST MISSION


24TH ST MISSION


GLEN PARK


BALBOA PARK


DALY CITY


COLMA


SOUTH SAN 
FRANCISCO SAN 


BRUNO


MILLBRAE


SAN FRANCISCO 
INTERNATIONAL 
AIRPORT (SFO)


Measure RR - RENEW STATIONS Projects
Active Projects Completed or Under Construction


Status as of 5/17/2019


El Cerrito del Norte Station Modification
Union City Station Modification
San Francisco Escalator Replacement


22


Renew Stations
Three stations are undergoing major modernizations funded by $210 million from Measure RR. 
El Cerrito, del Norte, Union City, and 19th Street are all being or will be renovated. $3.3 million has 
been invested in RR station renewal projects through March 2019 with a total investment objective of 
$9.1 million by June 2020.


RR paves the way for dozens of BART’s most heavily-used escalators to be replaced. A $96.5 million 
contract approved by the BART Board in March will target escalators that regularly malfunction in 
downtown San Francisco.


The Market Street Escalators Renovation Project will install and replace 41 escalators at Embarcadero, 
Montgomery, Powell, and Civic Center stations. Twenty-three of the escalators that will be replaced 
extend from the street to the concourse levels of the stations while 18 connect concourses with 
station platforms.  


Many of the units being replaced are 
among the oldest in the entire BART 
system. Not only have those units outlived 
their useful lives but they’ve struggled with 
handling passenger loads at BART’s busiest 
stations.  


This work will enhance rider safety and 
escalator reliability. A key provision of the 
program requires the contractor to maintain 
a reliability rate of at least 96% for the new 
escalators during the life of the contract.


Canopies are Coming
A key step in protecting the new escalators that 
are coming to downtown San Francisco will be 
the installation of 22 canopies. The canopies will 
be installed above the street level entrances at 
Embarcadero, Montgomery, Powell, and Civic 
Center stations. The program is partially funded 
through voter-approved Measure RR bond money.


Each canopy includes a real-time digital display 
that shows train arrival times, a retractable 
gate, LED lighting, and security cameras. Two 
prototype canopies were built as a pilot project. 
The plan is to replace six escalators and six 
canopies each year, staggering the work among 
the downtown San Francisco stations so not all 
the units at any one station are out at the same 
time. Construction on the remaining 22 canopies 
is scheduled to be complete in 2026.







Crowding
Traffic


ReliabilitySafety


$210
Million


6%
of Bond


MEASURE RR BOND OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT  |  2019       23







24


Train Control Modernization 
Measure RR supports larger projects that will help BART to expand its overall capacity. One such 
project is the replacement of BART’s outdated train control system. BART wants to implement a 
new Communications-Based Train Control system.  


Such a system will improve reliability and allow BART to decrease the runtime of trains between 
stations by allowing trains to run closer together. This is a critical component of BART’s plan to 
run all ten-car trains through the Transbay Tube during peak commute hours. A modernized train 
control system will enable BART to meet projected transbay demand of over 30,000 passengers 
per hour during the morning peak, compared to today’s approximately 21,000 riders.


In March 2019, BART received bidder proposals to upgrade the current train control system, 
and they are currently in review. $6.2 million in RR funding has been invested in train control 
modernization through March 2019 with a total investment objective of $19.8 million by June 2020. 
BART is also pursuing funding for this project from the Federal Transit Administration’s Capital 
Investment Grant Program and Transit and Intercity Rail Capital Program.


MAJOR PROJECTS FUNDED BY MEASURE RR 







MEASURE RR BOND OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT  |  2019       25MEASURE RR BOND OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT  |  2019       25


Crowding
Traffic


ReliabilitySafety


$400
Million


12%
of Bond







26


MAJOR PROJECTS FUNDED BY MEASURE RR 


Design and Engineer Projects to Relieve Crowding, 
Increase Redundancy and Reduce Traffic Congestion
Confronting the Bay Area’s commute challenges requires long-term planning. Measure RR provides 
$200 million to advance ways BART can relieve crowding and create greater system redundancy 
to mitigate the impact of delays. One idea that has caught the attention of many riders is the 
possibility of a new transbay rail crossing. A large component of funding in this category is for the 
work necessary to establish the foundation for a second crossing. However, completion of the work 
on a new transbay crossing will require resources and assets outside of RR.


A new crossing could be shared by BART and its standard-gauge rail partners. Such a project could 
double BART’s transbay capacity, reduce crowding during peak periods, make the system more 
flexible, and boost BART’s resiliency in the face of natural disasters and other major disruptions. 
The project could have an impact on not just the Bay Area but the entire Northern California 
megaregion. A new rail crossing could create the possibility of a one-seat ride connecting Silicon 
Valley, the Peninsula, and San Francisco with Sacramento and the Central Valley.


BART is working with Capitol Corridor on an 
early feasibility study of a new rail crossing.  
There are still many factors to consider 
including where a new crossing could be built 
and if it can include both standard-gauge rail 
and BART’s wider-gauge tracks. Over the 
coming months, BART and its partners will 
work to further define and scope this project.  
The BART Board approved a consulting 
contract for strategic advising and program 
management in June of 2019.


Meanwhile, work is moving forward to 
expand the Hayward Maintenance Complex 
to house BART’s growing fleet. Plans include 
construction of a 250-car storage yard along 
with associated infrastructure to operate a train 
yard. The project is expected to be completed 
in 2025.  


Construction is also set to begin this year on 
the Civic Center Stairs Project.


$5.9 million has been invested in RR crowding 
relief projects through March 2019 with a total 
investment objective of $12.5 million by June 
2020.


ANTIOCH
PITTSBURG 


CENTERPITTSBURG/ 
BAY POINT


NORTH CONCORD/
MARTINEZ


CONCORD


PLEASANT HILL / CONTRA COSTA CENTRE


WALNUT CREEK


LAFAYETTE


ORINDA


ROCKRIDGE


MACARTHUR


19TH ST/OAKLAND


12TH ST/OAKLAND CITY CENTER


LAKE MERRITT


FRUITVALE


COLISEUM


SAN LEANDRO


BAY FAIR
CASTRO VALLEY


WEST DUBLIN/
PLEASANTON


DUBLIN/
PLEASANTON


OAKLAND 
INTERNATIONAL 
AIRPORT (OAK)


HAYWARD


SOUTH HAYWARD


UNION CITY


FREMONT


WARM SPRINGS / SOUTH FREMONT


RICHMOND


EL CERRITO PLAZA


NORTH BERKELEY


DOWNTOWN BERKELEY


ASHBY


WEST OAKLAND


EMBARCADERO


MONTGOMERY ST


POWELL ST


16TH ST MISSION


24TH ST MISSION


GLEN PARK


BALBOA PARK


DALY CITY


COLMA


SOUTH SAN 
FRANCISCO SAN 


BRUNO


MILLBRAE


SAN FRANCISCO 
INTERNATIONAL 
AIRPORT (SFO)


EL CERRITO DEL NORTE


CIVIC CENTER / UN PLAZA


Measure RR - RELIEVE CROWDING Projects
Active Projects Under Construction, Design or Planning


Status as of 5/17/2019


Civic Center Scissor Stairs (Construction)
Embarcadero Elevator (Design)
Hayward Maintenance Complex Phase 2 (Design)
2nd Transbay Tube Crossing (Planning / Study)







MEASURE RR BOND OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT  |  2019       27MEASURE RR BOND OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT  |  2019       27


$200
Million


6%
of Bond Reliability Crowding


Traffic







28


MAJOR PROJECTS FUNDED BY MEASURE RR 


Access Improvements
Consistent with the 2016 Station Access Policy adopted by the BART Board, $135 million of Measure 
RR funds will support capital projects to expand opportunities to safely access BART stations, making 
it easier for all riders to use the system. BART will continue to leverage Measure RR with local and 
regional funding to expand the funding pot and to deliver more projects. These projects benefit 
people of all ages and mobility levels who walk, bike, take transit, get dropped off, or drive.


$6.1 million has been invested in RR access improvement projects through March 2019 with a total 
investment objective of $14.8 million by June 2020. Several projects are in construction including the  
El Cerrito del Norte – Ohlone Greenway and Intermodal improvements; West Side Pedestrian Bridge 
at Warm Springs; MacArthur Plaza/Bike Station; and the installation of LED elevator lights at 10 
stations across the system. 


BART is currently procuring improved bike stations at Embarcadero and Civic Center stations.  
Projects in the design phase include closing gaps in regional bike/ped trails at Dublin/Pleasanton and 
North Berkeley; adding new secure bike parking at five stations including 19th Street and Fremont; 
the installation of bicycle stair channels at seven stations including Lake Merritt and Walnut Creek; 
other active access improvements at several stations; shared mobility improvements at Balboa 


Park and Pittsburg Bay Point; strategic parking 
expansion at Antioch; and multiple accessibility 
improvements systemwide including new curb 
ramps, beacons, hearing loops and several other 
elements to facilitate access to and through the 
system. 


All told, around 22 access improvement projects 
are scheduled to get funding from Measure RR to 
make using BART safer, healthier, and greener. 


 


 


ANTIOCH
PITTSBURG 


CENTERPITTSBURG/ 
BAY POINT


NORTH CONCORD/
MARTINEZ


CONCORD


PLEASANT HILL / CONTRA COSTA CENTRE


WALNUT CREEK


LAFAYETTE


ORINDA


ROCKRIDGE


MACARTHUR


19TH ST/OAKLAND


12TH ST/OAKLAND CITY CENTER


LAKE MERRITT


FRUITVALE


COLISEUM


SAN LEANDRO


BAY FAIR


CASTRO VALLEY


WEST DUBLIN/
PLEASANTON


DUBLIN/
PLEASANTON


OAKLAND 
INTERNATIONAL 
AIRPORT (OAK)


HAYWARD


SOUTH HAYWARD


UNION CITY


FREMONT


WARM SPRINGS / SOUTH FREMONT


RICHMOND


EL CERRITO DEL NORTE


EL CERRITO PLAZA


NORTH BERKELEY


DOWNTOWN BERKELEY


ASHBY


WEST OAKLAND


EMBARCADERO


MONTGOMERY ST


POWELL ST


CIVIC CENTER / UN PLAZA


16TH ST MISSION


24TH ST MISSION


GLEN PARK


BALBOA PARK


DALY CITY


COLMA


SOUTH SAN 
FRANCISCO SAN 


BRUNO


MILLBRAE


SAN FRANCISCO 
INTERNATIONAL 
AIRPORT (SFO)


Measure RR - STATION ACCESS Projects
Active Projects Completed or Under Construction


Status as of 5/17/2019


Station Entrance Gates
ADA Lighting Improvements
Fare Evasion Barriers & Control
Warm Springs Pedestrian Bridge West
El Cerrito del Norte Gateway / Ohlone Greenway & 
Intermodal Improvements
MacArthur Transit Improvements & Plaza Renovation







MEASURE RR BOND OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT  |  2019       29MEASURE RR BOND OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT  |  2019       29


Crowding
Traffic


ReliabilitySafety


$135
Million


4%
of Bond







Committee Activities and Expenditures
As part of this report, the Bond Oversight Committee also presents a summary of its 
activities and expenditures. 


• September 21, 2018 – Regular Meeting
BART staff provided committee members with an update on Measure RR spending indicating 
BART is spending down the first tranche of bond funds faster than anticipated and getting 
more work done at this stage than anticipated. Committee received a presentation on 
parliamentary procedures. Committee moved to close meeting and begin ethics training. 
Reporter from KCBS radio attended a portion of the meeting but no other members of the 
public attended. 


• December 21, 2018 – Regular Meeting 
Committee member John Post nominated Michael McGill to serve as chair of the committee.  
Committee unanimously approved McGill’s appointment as chair and Post as vice chair.  
BART staff provided an update on the hiring of 309 positions and described outreach to 
small businesses. Staff provided presentation on earned value management for RR projects.  
Post asked for real data and offers to work with staff to describe the information the 
committee needs to see to determine if projects are on-time and on-budget. No members of 
the public attended.


• March 15, 2019 — Regular Meeting
Committee received an update from BART staff on search to find candidates to fill two 
vacancies on the committee. Committee received a presentation from BART staff on progress 
of RR-funded projects, which included a proposal to provide earned value rollups for those 
projects. BART staff provided the committee an update on work being done to draft this RR 
annual report. Committee was told goal is to publish the annual report by the end of June. 
Committee discussed possibility of a field trip to RR-funded project sites and need to make 
such visits accessible to the public. One member of the public attended and spoke about the 
annual RR report.


Expenditures: As of this report, the committee has spent $6,085 in FY19.


You are welcome to give public input on this committee’s activities. The meetings are 
open to the public and will be listed on the BART website at www.bart.gov/about/bod/
meetings/2019. The committee will also be publishing an annual report each year to inform 
the public of BART’s progress and activities. You can sign up for email notices of BART News, 
which will include major milestones in Measure RR work at www.bart.gov/alerts.


The public can view meeting minutes at www.bart.gov/bondoversight.








BART Bicycle Advisory Task Force
(BBATF)


Year End Report


BART Board
July 25, 2019


Rick Goldman, Chair BBATF







BBATF


1
July 25, 2019 BART Board Meeting


BART Bicycle Advisory Task Force:
Advise BART staff and Board to improve accessibility and safety of 
BART system for bicyclists and their bicycles.  


Officers:
Rick Goldman (SF) - Chair
Jon Spangler (AL) – Vice Chair
Katie DeLeuw (SM) – Secretary







Bicycle Access


2
July, 25, 2019 BART Board Meeting


Goal: Double bike access from 4% to 8% by 2022


Strategy Example Focus to date


Circulation 
improvements


Stair channels, accessible 
fare gates


Availability of safe 
parking


Bike lockers, bike stations


Bikes on board Commute period access, 
bike space on cars


Encouragement 
programs


Bike-to-Work Day, Bike 
share promotion


Beyond BART 
boundaries


Bike sharing, support local 
improvements







Bicycle Access


3
July 25, 2019 BART Board Meeting


• Station Access
Iron Horse Trail: Dublin/Pleasanton
Ohlone Greenway: North Berkeley
Bay Trail: Coliseum


• Feedback on Irvington Station Access
• Stair Channels: Site visit to Warm Springs 
• Castro Valley Bicycle Access







Bicycle Access


4
July 25, 2019 BART Board Meeting


• Dockless Mobility Devices around BART property
• Network Gap Studies (17)


Feedback on station specific recommendations
Participated in Site Studies


• Fleet of the Future
Frequent feedback on Bike space
Effort to evaluate bike racks on running trains
Recommended 2 flex spaces per car







Security and Safety


5
July 25, 2019 BART Board Meeting


• Suggestions to improve Bike Space signage
• Bikeep Racks Improvement
• Feedback on Bike Straps – Delivery 6/19


• I have already used the new bike straps







Thank You


6
July 25, 2019 BART Board Meeting


Questions?





		Slide Number 1

		BBATF

		Bicycle Access

		Bicycle Access

		Bicycle Access

		Security and Safety

		Thank You






Transbay Corridor Core 
Capacity Project


July 25, 2019


0Planning, Development & Construction







• Project is in FTA’s Capital Investment Grant (CIG) Program in the 
Core Capacity Area of eligibility.


• Project will address overcrowded trains and expand capacity on 
the system.  Transbay peak hour person-capacity will be 
increased by 45%.


• Project has 4 main elements:
• Train Control Modernization Project (TCMP)
• 306 additional railcars
• Hayward Maintenance Complex Eastside Yard (HMC Ph 2)
• 5 new traction power substations (TPSS)


• Total cost – approximately $3.5 billion


Core Capacity Basics


1Planning, Development & Construction







Project Scope
• New communication-


based train control 
(CBTC) systemwide


• 306 add’l railcars
• New railcar storage 


yard at Hayward Yard
• 5 new traction power 


substations


Note:  Corridor limit shown is for 
FTA CIG Program eligibility 
purposes only. 


2Planning, Development & Construction


San Rafael 


Sausaltto 


@ 


San Mateo County 


San Pablo 


San Mateo 


Pittsburg/ 
Bay Point Prttsburg 


® ® 
Martinez ® 


® Concord 


Pleasant Hill ~ Clayton 


® 
V\lalnut Creek 


Orinda Lafayette ® 
® 


® 
Contra Costa County 


Moraga 


Pied ,------------


~ J Core Capacity Corridor J 


Oakland ' ·~ 
•'- Alameda County .. 


San ~ 
• Leandro & 


~ ., 


Hayward 


Danville 


San Ramon 


Dublin/ 
Pleasanton 


Pleasanton 


Belmont Newark 


Redwood City 
San Carlos 


Menlo Park 


East Palo Alto 


Atherton 


\ 
\ 


' 
' 







BART’s Peak Hour Transbay Market ShareBART’s Peak Hour Transbay Market Share


3Transbay Corridor Core Capacity


All Day – BART carries 240,000 riders 
Transbay, or about 46% of daily total.







Recent FTA Actions – Program Level


• FTA approved BART’s request to be approved into the Engineering 
phase of FTA’s Capital Investment Grant (CIG) program on 6/20/19.  


• FTA allocated BART $300 million in FY2018 CIG funds, which will 
come to BART as part of the Full-Funding Grant Agreement (FFGA).  


• FTA set BART’s CIG amount at $1.169 billion. FTA has proposed an 
accelerated payout schedule. 


• FTA approved BART’s request for a Letter-of-No-Prejudice (LONP) on 
7/15/19.  This will allow BART to award contracts for the Train Control 
Modernization contract and for the installation of two traction power 
substations in San Francisco prior to the FFGA using committed 
funds, and allows BART to recoup expenses incurred in advance of 
the FFGA. 


4Planning, Development & Construction







Recent Developments – Program Level


• FTA has said they will try to meet the goal of having a Full-Funding 
Grant Agreement (FFGA) in place by the end of December 2019. 


• BART Board approved BART matching funds of $200 million as part of 
the Inflation-Based Fare Increase Program. 


• FTA’s Annual Report to Congress rated the project “HIGH” – the best 
rating possible – only major project in the country with a HIGH rating.


5Planning, Development & Construction







Core Capacity Project Update 


Recent Progress on Project Elements


Train Control 
Modernization 
(TCMP)


• Proposals received from Hitachi (Ansaldo) and Alstom –
technical and cost analysis complete.


• Two rounds of negotiations and clarifications completed.
• RFP underway for mid-August 2019 Best-And-Final-Offer 


(BAFO) package.  Award expected in late 2019.


Railcars
• Opened bid proposal from Bombardier – review team 


analyzing.
• Price proposal within “not to exceed” cost set by BART 


Board.


Hayward Maint. 
Complex Ph 2


• Moving forward on design work.
• Preparing procurement contract for long-lead trackwork.


Traction Power 
Substations


• West Bay package (2 substations) at 100% design and is 
in the procurement process.  Target early 2020 to award. 


• East Bay package (3 substations) – design work in 
progress 6







Baseline Cost Estimate


In millions of dollars - Year-of-Expenditure 
as of 7/15/19


Total Cost CIG-Eligible CIG-Ineligible


Train Control Modernization $1,673 $1,028 $644


Additional Railcars (306) $1,105 $919 $186


Hayward Maintenance 
Complex Phase 2


$345 $345


Traction Power Substations 
(TPSS)


$137 $137


Program Management $27 $27


Program Contingency $249 $249


Total $3,536 $2,705 $831


7Planning, Development & Construction







Funding


 Total program cost is ~$3.5 billion in YOE dollars


Major Sources


FTA Capital Investment Grant (CIG) $1,169M


Regional Measure 3 $500M


CA State Transit & Intercity Rail Program $490M


BART Measure RR $460M


BART Capital Allocations $214M


MTC Exchange Account $179M


Other (several sources) $516M


8Planning, Development & Construction







Summary Schedule


Entry into Engineering and LONP


Full Funding Grant Agreement


CBTC Procurement


CBTC Design and Testing


CBTC Implementation


CBTC Closeout


775 Vehicle Replacement (FOTF)


306 Vehicle Procurement (Same Supplier)


HMC Phase 2 Design & Procurement


HMC Phase 2 Construction


TPSS Design & Procurement


TPSS Delivery & Install 2 West Bay


TPSS Delivery & Install 3 East Bay


28 Trains Per Hour Service


30 Trains Per Hour Service


2018 2019   2020   2021   2022   2023   2024   2025   2026   2027   2028   2029   2030   2031   2032   2033   2034


July 2019


9Planning, Development & Construction







Next Steps


• Risk Workshop (BART and FTA) – July 30/31, 2019
• Updated Financial Plan to FTA – July 31, 2019
• Full Funding Grant Agreement (FFGA) – December 2019
• TCMP contract award – Late 2019
• Railcar contract award – Spring 2020


10Planning, Development & Construction







Questions?


11





